
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 13 MARCH 2014 

Time: 1.45pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 

Jeremy Mayhew (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers 
Simon Duckworth 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Alderman Matthew Richardson 
Ian Seaton 
Vacancy 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor Alderman Fiona Woolf (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Xanthe Couture  

tel. no.: 020 7332 3113 
xanthe.couture@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 12 February 

2014.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 10) 

 
5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 To receive a progress report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 11 - 54) 

 
6. GRANT APPLICATIONS STATISTICAL REPORT 
 To receive a report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 55 - 60) 

 
7. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 

ASSESSMENTS 
 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations as follows:- 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 61 - 64) 

 
 a) Wandsworth Community Empowerment Network - Recommended Grant 

£109,120             (Pages 65 - 76) 
 

 b) Community Development Finance Association (CDFA) - Recommended Grant 
£133,400             (Pages 77 - 88) 

 

 c) Council of Somali Organisations (CSO) - Recommended Grant £100,000   
          (Pages 89 - 102) 

 

 d) Epping Forest Charitable Trust - Recommended Grant £388,000   
                  (Pages 103 - 114) 

 

 e) SHARE Community - Recommended Grant £130,000   
                  (Pages 115 - 124) 

 



3 
 

 f) Bede House Association - Recommended Grant £88,000   
                  (Pages 125 - 136) 

 

 g) Bexley Citizens Advice Bureaux - Recommended Grant £101,440   
                  (Pages 137 - 146) 

 

 h) Centre For Armenian Information & Advice - Recommended Grant £90,000  
                  (Pages 147 - 158) 

 

 i) Zacchaeus 2000 Trust - Recommended Grant £149,850   
                  (Pages 159 - 170) 

 

 j) Changing Paths Charitable Trust Limited - Recommended Grant £50,000   
                  (Pages 171 - 180) 

 

 k) Research on Access to the Arts for People with Learning Disabilities - 
Recommended Grant £40,000                (Pages 181 - 184) 

 

 l) City Philanthropy - Recommended Grant £222,000   
                  (Pages 185 - 190) 

 

 m) London Youth Inclusion Project - Recommended Grant £216,000   
                  (Pages 191 - 194) 

 

 n) Media Trust, London 360 - Recommended Grant £240,000 
                  (Pages 195 - 200) 

 

 o) New Economics Foundation (nef) - Recommended Grant £30,000   
                  (Pages 201 - 206) 

 

 p) London Legal Support Trust - Recommended Grant £450,000   
                  (Pages 207 - 212) 

 

8. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:- 
 

 
 a) Grants Recommended for Rejection   

               For Decision 
                  (Pages 213 - 216) 

 

 b) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications   
           For Information 
                  (Pages 217 - 218) 

 

 c) Grants Approved under Delegated Authority   
           For Information 
                  (Pages 219 - 222) 

 

 d) Reports on Monitoring Visits   
           For Information 
                  (Pages 223 - 228) 

 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 



11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2014. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 229 - 230) 

 
13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 12 February 2014  
 

Minutes of the meeting of The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Wednesday, 12 February 2014 at 1.45pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Jeremy Mayhew (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers 
Simon Duckworth 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Alderman Matthew Richardson 
Ian Seaton 
 

 
Officers: 
Xanthe Couture - Town Clerk's Department 

Steven Reynolds - Chamberlain's Department 

David Farnsworth - The City Bridge Trust 

Jenny Field - The City Bridge Trust 

Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 

Jemma Grieve Combes - The City Bridge Trust 

Tim Wilson - The City Bridge Trust 

Julia Mirkin - The City Bridge Trust 

 
Representatives from the following organisations, whom the Chairman welcomed to 
the meeting were also present: 
 

• Jewish Care  

• London Funders (Annex 7.i) 

• Evelyn Oldfield (Annex 7.d) 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies for absence received. 
 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Ian Seaton declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of Item 7.a) due to 
being a Director of the Livery Company Apprenticeship Scheme. 
 
Jemma Grieve Combes and Becky Green of London Funders declared a non-
pecuniary interest in respect of Item 7.i) due to being, respectively, a Trustee 
and an employee of London Funders.  
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the last meeting held on 9th January 2014 be 
approved as an accurate record.  
 

4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS  
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that identified items which 
required further action by officers. 
 
Social Investment funding  
The Deputy Chairman noted that the update report on City Bridge Trust 
grantees that could access Social Investment funding had been completed, and 
the outstanding item could therefore be removed.  
 
Outstanding Grant Conditions 
A satisfactory 2014 budget had been received for Otakar Music Trust.  

 
RESOLVED – That the report be received.  
 

5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS  
The Committee considered the regular progress report and events update of 
the Chief Grants Officer.  
 
RESOLVED – That, 
 
a)  the report be received and its contents noted;  
b)  the allocation of £300,000 from the grants budget for 2013/14 for 

delivery of the London Youth Quality Mark Awards scheme; and 
c)        the allocation for Strategic Initiatives for 2013/14 be increased to £2.5m.  
 
 

6. GRANT APPLICATIONS STATISTICAL REPORT  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer that 
summarised applications received and action taken under the 2013/14 Working 
with Londoners and Investing in Londoners grants programmes.  
 
The Chairman noted that in the Summary and paragraph 2.1 of the report 
should read that 25 applications would be dealt with at today’s meeting not 21. 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, which dealt with 
recommendations relating to applications received on the current grants 
programme. Members noted that a total of 25 applications would be dealt with 
at the meeting, of which 4 were Strategic Initiatives, 10 were recommended for 

Page 2



approval and were 13 recommended for rejection. 1 grant was noted as 
approved under delegated authority.  
 
RESOLVED  - That, 
 

a) the report be noted; and 
b) the grant recommendations in the subsequent annexes be considered.  

 
7. GRANT AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 

ASSESSMENTS  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which 
recommended grants to various organisations. 
 
Members considered each application and the following observations were 
noted:  
 
Item 7a (National Army Museum) – a Member remarked that the City’s Livery 
companies should be made aware of the Trust’s funding, should it be awarded.  
 
A Member noted that this was an important initiative to establish full disabled 
access within the redeveloped NAM, and reflected upon the City’s strong 
relationship with the military and moved to increase the grant agreed by the 
Committee to £150,000.  
 
Members discussed whether a further report should come back outlining further 
details of the NAM’s capital programme funding. Officers noted that the project 
met the Trust’s grant giving criteria and Members did have the power to amend 
policy, which was articulated within the Trust’s grant giving policy. In this 
instance, the policy being the £50,000 limit to grants for accessible buildings 
under the ‘Working with Londoners – Accessible London’ grants programme. 
 
In respect of the increase to the proposed grant, the Committee moved to a 
vote which was CARRIED. It was agreed therefore that the National Army 
Museum would be awarded £150,000. 
 
Item 7c (Eaves Housing For Women) – a Member enquired as to whether 
grantees could be asked to request a larger grant if it was warranted. 
 
Officers informed Members that the lease agreement on their office had been 
negotiated and a contract would be in effect from April this year for a three year 
term. The application had also been previously withdrawn and resubmitted from 
the stated application date of January 2013 (pg 69). 
 
Following discussion, it was agreed that the grant be increased from £103,000 
to £103,500, to be in line with the amount requested of £103,338. 
 
Item 7d (Strategic Initiative: Greening the Economy Conference) – officers 
remarked that the recommendation sought to approve the budget up to a 
maximum amount required though venue hire costs could be less than 
estimated. Members were informed the date of the event was tentatively 

Page 3



scheduled for the 19th May 2014. The Deputy Chairman requested that a range 
of views be presented at the Conference. 
 
Item 7h (Strategic Initiative: Islington Giving) – Members observed that it was 
not usually the Trust’s practice to fund other grant making charities, though this 
may be an effective way to distribute funds locally. Officers replied that the 
latest Quinquennial Review altered this policy and there were now programmes 
utilising the expertise of other grant-making bodies. 
 
Item 7i (London’ Funders) – the Chairman noted that as CBT was London’s 
largest grant-making trust, and the most significant funder to this important 
organisation, it was appropriate that the revised sum be recommended. 
 
Item 7j (Voluntary Action Westminster) – in response to a query from Members 
to provide further details on the organisation’s deficit, officers advised the 
organisation was now in a better position and had made budget reductions. It 
was agreed the grant would be subject to monitoring reports and would receive 
quarterly payments. 
 
7.a) National Army Museum - Recommended Grant £150,000  
 
£150,000 towards the provision of disabled access works within ‘Building for 
the Future’ capital improvement project.  
 
7.b) Foundation for Women's Health Research and Development 

FORWARD - Recommended Grant £90,000  
 
£90,000 over three years (3 x £30,000) towards a project providing leadership 
and para-counselling training and peer support for African women living in 
London affected by FGM. 
 
7.c)   Eaves Housing for Women - Recommended Grant £103,500  
 
£103,500 over two years (£51,250; £52,250) for the full-time Research and 
Training Officer post, a contribution to the Research and Development 
Manager’s post and associated project costs.  
 
7.d)   Evelyn Oldfield Unit - Recommended Grant £92,000  
 
A grant of £92,000 over three years (£31,000; £30,400; £30,600) towards the 
p/t (17.5 hpw) salary of a Development Worker and running costs of the 
‘Funding for the Future’ project to enable BAMER groups to build capacity; 
deliver and measure quality programmes; engage in cross-sectoral 
partnerships; and give BAMER communities a voice.  
 
7.e)    SPICE (London Time Credits) - Recommended Grant £385,200  
 
A sum of £385,200 over three years (£134,000; £138,400; £112,400) to 
continue the development of a new model of volunteering in London, charged 
against the City Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation for 2013/14. 

Page 4



 
7.f)    Greening the Economy Conference - Recommended Grant £20,000  
 
A budget of £20,000 towards the cost of a conference entitled ‘Greening the 
Economy’ to be held in May 2014, charged against the City Bridge Trust 
Strategic Initiatives allocation for 2013/14. 
 
7.g)  Social Finance's Impact Incubator Project - Recommended Grant 

£24,000  
 
The first year of Social Finance’s Impact Incubator project with a grant of 
£24,000, charged against the City Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation 
for 2013/14.  
 
7.h)   Islington Giving - Recommended Grant £220,000  
 
A sum of £220,000 over two years (£100,000; £120,000) to support the further 
development and roll-out of the Islington Giving model, costed against the 
budget for Strategic Initiatives for 2013/14. 
 
7.i)     London' Funders - Recommended Grant £100,000  
 
£100,000 over two years (£50,000; £50,000) towards the core costs of London 
Funders on conditions that a satisfactory revised budget is submitted to take 
account of the increased activity and related spend to deliver LF’s strategic 
plan. 
 
7.j)    Voluntary Action Westminster - Recommended Grant £94,000  
 
£94,000 over two years (£46,300; £47,700) towards the salary and support 
costs of an Organisational Development Officer (2 days pw) and an Information 
and Communications Officer (2 days pw) to deliver Voluntary Action 
Westminster’s Just for You programme, subject to satisfactory monitoring 
reports. 
 

8. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS 
FOLLOWS:-  
 
8.a)   Grants Recommended for Rejection  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which 
recommended that 13 grant applications in the Working with Londoners 
programme be rejected for the reasons identified in the schedule attached to 
the report.  
 
RESOLVED: That, the grant applications detailed in the schedule attached to 
the report be rejected. 
 
8.b)   Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  
 

Page 5



The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided 
details of one application which had been withdrawn. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be received.  
 
8.c)   Grants Approved under Delegated Authority  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised 
Members of one grant, totalling £1,500 which had been presented for approval 
under delegated authority to the Chief Grants Officer. 
 

• Pan Intercultural Arts - £1,500 towards the cost of an eco-audit. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 
8.d)    Reports on Monitoring Visits  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer relative to two 
visits that had been undertaken. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
Item No.    Exempt Paragraphs 
13      3 
15      3 
 
 

12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2014 were 
considered. 
 

13. REVISED MEMBERS' HANDBOOK  
The Committee received the draft revised Members’ Handbook. 
 
 

Page 6



14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was one item of urgent business raised in respect of the following – 
 
City Bridge Trust annual appointments.  
 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 2.55pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Xanthe Couture  
tel. no.: 020 7332 3113 
xanthe.couture@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Outstanding Items     
 

 

 

 
Item 

 

 
Action 

Officer responsible  
Progress by 

12 February 2014  

Access works A Member raised a query as to whether or not it could be determined 

if organisations which had received a capital grant of £50,000 for 

access works then had to delay the works due to the need to raise a 

balance. Officers would examine the database and report back 

accordingly. 

Jemma Grieve 
Combes 

13 March 2014 

Members’ 
handbook 

Members to provide comments to the Handbook to be in contact with 

Trust officers over the coming weeks before publication. 

Chief Grants Officer  13 March 2014 

Outstanding Financial Conditions: CBT Committee –  9 January 2014 

Paddington 
Development Trust 

Grant subject to receipt of satisfactory monitoring report for current 

grant. 

Jenny Field 31 March 2014 

Outstanding  Financial Conditions: CBT Committee – 28 November 2013 

SSBA Community 
Trust 

Grant subject to receipt of satisfactory audited accounts for the 
period ended 31st March 2013 

Sandra 
Davidson/Chamberlai
n 

Due by 12th February 2014 

Outstanding Financial Conditions: CBT Committee – 4 September 2013 

Castlehaven 
Community 
Association 

Grant conditional on securing full match funding. Joan 
Millbank/Chamberlain 

 Organisation expects to know 
outcome of match-funding bid 
in March/April 2014 A

genda Item
 4

P
age 9



P
age 10

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust 13th March 2014 

Subject:  

Progress Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

Summary 

This is a regular Progress Report by the Chief Grants Officer. 

Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

(1) Note the report 

(2) Approve the draft City Bridge Trust Business Plan April 2014 – March 
2015. 

 
Main Report 

 
The Work Continues 
 
1. Since the last meeting I have continued my programme of Friday visits to see 
 the work you are funding.  Thank you to so many of you for accompanying me 
 and other members of the team to see some of this extraordinary work and 
 meet the inspiring people who are delivering it. 
 
2. A recent highlight was a visit to St Giles Trust in Camberwell 

 (www.stgilestrust.org.uk). The Trust supports an employment readiness 
officer to work with ex-offenders and assist them to develop the confidence 
and skills to (re)enter the mainstream workforce.  The success rate of the 
project is impressive.  The testimony of two female ex-prisoners was moving.  
The impact of the work on their lives had been transformative:  both felt they 
had lost everything – now they have employment, a network, support, and a 
sense  of self-worth and purpose. 

 
Building on the Work: Pro – active grant proposals 
 
3. Building on the work you have been able to fund this year, you will see in your 

papers today there are developed proposals for the pro-active grants which 
you received early notice of in your February papers. The proposals all relate 
to organisations that have a solid track-record of delivery. 

 
4. You will recall that consideration of these pro-active grants has been possible 

 because of the surplus monies remaining in the 2013-2014 grants budget:  a 
 result of the £2.7M carry-over from the previous year; the considerable time 
 and resource taken up by the Quinquennial Review this year; transition to the 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



 new grants programme; and capacity issues arising from human resource 
considerations and more onerous due diligence requirements. 

 
5. Clearly the needs arising from disadvantage in London are greater than the 

funds available to the Trust.  It is the Trust’s responsibility as London’s largest 
independent grant-giver to make best use of these resources.  The pro-active 
grant proposals today are therefore brought with the need to  ensure that 
monies are deployed thoughtfully, with no artificial rush to spend within the 
financial year; and so not compromising the quality of your grant-making.   

 
6. Coupled with the pro-active grant proposals is therefore the recognition that 

there is important work that will go into the next financial year, but which can 
be resourced through the balance of the 2013-2014 grants budget.  This was 
referred to in your February Committee papers and a detailed paper is being 
prepared, in consultation with the Chamberlain’s department, for 
consideration by you at your April meeting.  This paper will be informed by the 
final figure on the 2013-2014 grants budget that will be known at the end of 
the March committee meeting. 

 
7. As you will recall from your last CBT Committee meeting, the intention is that 

this sum is set against particular purposes for spending in 2014-2015: this will 
form a designated reserve over and above the £15M grants budget already 
agreed for the coming year (subject to Committee approval). 

 
8. The work that will be funded to address the needs of London through this 

designated reserve will coincide with the 20th Anniversary of the Trust in 2015.  
This will be a real opportunity to amplify and celebrate the extraordinary work 
you have enabled to date: spotlighting some of the transformative projects 
you have been able to support; celebrating the work of your grantees; whilst 
high-lighting the considerable on-going needs of London. 

 
9. Several of the pro-active proposals before you today are to build on 

work/projects you currently support and where the work has been of a high 
standard and with good outcomes. Additionally, your officers have been 
working proactively with three organisations over a period of time to determine 
specialist areas of work which would complement your aims as a funder and 
make a significant contribution to London and Londoners.   

 
10 Two of these proposals (London Youth and London Legal Support Trust) are 

included in your papers today for work which is new to your Committee. Both 
organisations occupy a unique and specialist position in the sector, and each 
has the sole capability to deliver the work proposed and to the standards you 
would expect.  Work on the third proposal, for Thames 21 to run a 
Development Programme to increase and sustain London volunteers in 
protecting the Capital’s waterways, was still ongoing at the time of writing this 
paper and it will be brought to your April Committee meeting.  

 
10. Also included in the pro-active grant proposals is funding for your City 

Philanthropy – wealth of opportunity initiative to build its capacity to increase 
the number of young City professionals engaged with philanthropy and to 

Page 12



promote London as a global centre of philanthropy.  In tandem with these 
development plans, your officers have been working pro-actively with two of 
the projects you are currently funding under this banner.  One of these 
proposals is to continue to support the Beacon Award for City Philanthropy as 
a category of the Beacon Fellowship Awards which recognise and celebrate 
the contribution of individual philanthropists.  The other is to build the capacity 
of Young Philanthropy.  Again, work on these proposals was still ongoing at 
the time of writing this paper and they will therefore also come to your April 
meeting. 

 
11. Officers recommend that should you agree to support these three pro-active 

proposals at your April meeting, they would be resourced from the proposed 
designated reserve, as set out in paragraphs 6 - 8.  

 
The Future:  2014 – 2015 Business Plan 
 
11. A particular focus of this period has been the culmination of your team’s 

 planning for the year ahead. Consideration of how the Trust can make the 
best use of its financial and non-financial resources to ensure it has the 
 most impact on disadvantage in London has formed the central premise of our 
 thinking.   

 
12. This work began with team planning days in November last year.  This was 

further developed through a team business planning session held in the last 
month, the culmination of which is the draft business plan attached for your 
consideration at Appendix A.  If you approve the draft, the final version will be 
circulated to you under separate cover, as well as to colleagues in other City 
of London Corporation departments. 

 
13. The context the Trust is operating in is key:  2014-2015 will see further and 

deeper cuts to public services and the full impact of the cuts already made will 
start to really bite on London’s communities.  This will have a consequent 
impact on the community and voluntary sector that you are funding and the 
demands on the services they provide. 

 
14. Against this backdrop, the Trust’s over-arching driver will be always to make 

the most of our financial and non-financial assets to have the deepest impact 
on addressing London’s ‘Tale of Two Cities’: bridging that divide, but also 
working to close that divide.   

 
15. The detail is contained in the draft business plan at Appendix A for your 

consideration, but key features will be: 
 

• Ensuring that the Trust spends down to zero on your 2014 – 2015 grants 
budget, whilst not compromising quality:  working to increase our 
effectiveness and efficiency; 

 

• Ensuring the Trust makes the most of its non-financial assets: the knowledge 
and expertise of our 500 – 600 grantees; the macro insights the Trust’s  

Page 13



funding role affords;  the Trust’s convening power, and access to networks 
across the sectors; 
 

• Improving our own evaluation and learning; 
 

• Ensuring your grant-making; the Trust’s management of the social investment 
fund; and work to increase philanthropic giving in the City of London are 
further integrated with a view to increasing impact; 
 

• Reviewing your grant-making rules and procedures (including duration of 
grants; quantum; spread) informed by the results of the grantee perception 
survey; 

 

• Reviewing the Trust’s work flow (assisted by the introduction of the online 
application and monitoring software); 
 

• Reviewing the Trust’s operational resources and how the Trust interacts with 
the resources provided through the CoL’s central services function 
 

Conclusion 
 
16. The Trust is privileged to occupy a unique space in London:  It has 

 independent grant-giving funds second to none; it is situated within one of the 
 oldest institutions in London at the heart of  private, statutory, governmental 
 and community and voluntary sector networks;  and it reaches deep into 
 London communities.  At any one time, the Trust is connected with thousands 
of Londoners through its grantee portfolio.  

 
17. Unfortunately whilst some progress has been made, there is still considerable 
 disadvantage in London.  The business plan is the practical articulation of how 
 the Trust aims to draw on all of its assets: to be driven by need; responsive to 
 context; and continually learning and improving to ensure we continue to 
 address that disadvantage to the best of our ability.  
 
 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

(1) Note the report 

(2) Approve the City Bridge Trust Business Plan April 2014 – March 2015. 
 
 
 
 
David Farnsworth, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3713 
david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 27th February 2014              

Page 14



Appendix A 

D R A F T 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The City Bridge Trust 

Business Plan April 2014 - March 2015 

 
 
 

Responsible Officer: David Farnsworth, Chief Grants Officer 

Contact Officer: Jenny Field, Deputy Chief Grants Officer 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 15



 2

 

 

Contents 
 

Section 1 
Background        pages 3–4 
a)  History 
b)  Mission statement and values 
c)  Context 
d)  Evidence-based grant-making 
 
Section 2 
The Year Ahead – an Overview     pages 5-7 
a)  Key Activity 
b)  Pro-active Initiatives 
c)  Wembley National Stadium 
d)  Resources 
 
Section 3 
Departmental Objectives      pages 8–23 
1)  Evidence & Learning 
2)  Fitter for Purpose 
3)  Grant-making 
4)  Social Investment 
5)  Philanthropy 
6)  Communication 
7)  Performance and corporate management 
 
Section 4 
The City Together Strategy & Corporate Plan   pages 24-25 
 
Section 5 
Risk Management      pages 26–29 
 
Appendices 
1)  CBT Business Plan Summary 2014-15   page 
2)  Financial and staffing summary   page 
3)  CBT Organisational chart    page 

 
 
 

Page 16



 3

Section 1 - The City Bridge Trust 
 
a) History 
 
The City Bridge Trust is the grant-making arm of Bridge House Estates, a registered 
charity (no.1035628) the primary objective of which is to maintain the five bridges 
which cross the Thames into the City. Its origin can be traced to 1097 when William 
Rufus raised a special tax to repair the then wooden bridge spanning the Thames. In 
1176, Peter de Colechurch was commissioned to build the first stone bridge.  This 
famous “living bridge” was completed in 1209, and hence celebrated its 800th 
anniversary in 2009.  Money for the upkeep of the bridge was raised from rents and 
tolls, as well as bequests from wealthy merchants.  A significant fund accumulated 
over the centuries which the City of London Corporation (the Mayor and Commonality 
and Citizens of the City of London) skilfully administrated as Trustee. The charity is 
governed by various Royal Charters, Acts of Parliament, statutory instruments, and 
Scheme and Orders of the Charity Commission, which set down the framework for the 
charity’s management. 
 
The Charity Commission is the regulatory body for Bridge House Estates. In 1995 the 
Charity Commission approved a Scheme to widen the objects of the Trust allowing it 
to distribute funds surplus to bridge requirements for charitable purposes for the 
benefit of Londoners.  The City of London Corporation as Trustee of Bridge House 
Estates has an obligation to apply the income of the charity to further the charitable 
purposes of the charity and to follow the approved Scheme. The Corporation could be 
challenged and censured by the Charity Commission if it failed to do so without a 
justifiable reason.  

 
b) Mission statement and values 

The Trust aims to reduce disadvantage by supporting effective charitable activity 
across Greater London through quality grant-making and related activity within 
clearly defined priorities. 

   
The Trust’s mission is underpinned by enduring values: 

• Independence from Government  
• Inclusion  
• Fairness 
 

Through its grant-making and related activities, the Trust wants to make London a 
better, fairer and more equal place in which to live.  Over the years, the Trust has 
gained a reputation as a thoughtful and influential grant maker.  Today, it is London’s 
largest grant-making charitable trust in terms of the value of grants distributed.  It 
therefore occupies a unique place in London’s community and voluntary sector and 
with that position is conferred an enormous responsibility. 
 
c) Context 
 
It is essential that the Trust remains alive and responsive to the climate within which 
it operates.  These are unprecedented times for London’s communities and its 
voluntary sector.  The effects of the recession continue to bite, with people living on 
greatly reduced incomes (whether as a result of unemployment, increased cost of 
living, reduced salaries or cuts in benefits).  The voluntary sector is experiencing ever 
greater calls on its services whilst at the same time facing reduced funding and fewer 

Page 17



 4

new funding opportunities.  London local government has taken a 33%1 real term cut 
in service funding from central government between 2009/10 and 2013/14.  Deeper 
public sector cuts are to come in 2015 which will hit London’s disadvantaged 
communities hard. 
 
d)  Evidence-based grant-making 
  
Given this context, and the Trust’s responsibilities as a leading funder, it is vital that 
its objectives (and the activities we undertake to meet those objectives) are driven by 
a commitment to better understand the needs of London’s communities and how it 
can best meet those needs. In addition to this on-going commitment, the Trust 
undertakes a comprehensive review of its grant making criteria and policies every five 
years, driven by an analysis of needs.   
 
The Trust’s third Quinquennial Review was completed during 2013/14, following a 
comprehensive review of our grant-making during the past five years; comprehensive 
research into London’s most pressing needs over the next five years;  and extensive 
consultation with voluntary and community organisations, other funders, policy 
makers and key commentators. 
 
The new Investing in Londoners grants programmes were launched at the end of 
September 2013. 
  

  

                                                           
1
 Source:  Hard Times, New Directions: The Local Government Cuts in London, the interim report of the Social 

Policy in a Cold Climate Research of the Centre for Analysis of Social Exclusion, LSE 

Page 18



 5

Section 2 - The Year Ahead: an Overview 
 
a) Key Activity 

 
In this context and informed by evidence of need, the Trust’s key areas of activity for 
this year will be: 

 
• Delivery of the grants programme: Investing in Londoners 
• The implementation of the Trust and CoL’s shared social investment 

strategy: with particular responsibility for the £20m Social Investment 
Fund (drawn from Bridge House Estates’ capital) and consideration of its 
relationship with the Trust’s grant-making 

• The development of the Trust and CoL’s shared philanthropy strategy 
through the ‘City Philanthropy – A Wealth of Opportunity’ initiative 

• Pro-active initiatives that enable the Trust to inform and add value to its 
wider grant-making – including developing the shared learning and 
capacity building programmes 

• A review of the Trust’s policies, processes, and resources (financial and 
non-financial) to ensure it is fit for purpose. 

   
b) Wembley National Stadium Trust 
 
Since 2012/13, the work of this independent grant-maker has been administered by 
CBT under contract. Three grants rounds were launched during 2013/14: two 
benefitting groups in L.B. Brent and the third London-wide. The current contract is 
due to end in March 2015. 

 
 

c) Proactive Initiatives 
 
These initiatives complement and enhance the on-going grants programmes, by 
informing and adding value to the Trust’s wider grant-making.  The Trust is in the 
privileged position of having a ‘helicopter’ view of London’s voluntary sector and this 
combined with our membership of various regional, national and international 
networks means it is well placed to initiate strategic pieces of work that can have a 
wide-ranging impact.   
 
During 2013/14, examples of such initiatives included: 
 

• Continued funding of an Access and Sustainability Advisory Service, within the 
Centre for Accessible Environments (£192,900 over 3 years).  The Trust first 
asked the Centre for Accessible Environments to establish this service on its 
behalf in January 2006.  The postholder provides advice and support to would-
be applicants and grantees of the Trust’s Access to Buildings programme, as 
well as the wider voluntary sector.  For many community organisations, 
especially smaller ones, overseeing a building project is a one-off experience 
and an extremely daunting one.  Organisations find the advice and expertise of 
the service extremely useful and this is a good example of how the Trust adds 
value to its grant-making.  

• Support towards the merger costs of the National Council for Voluntary 
Organisations and Volunteer England (£50,000).  These were the country’s two 
leading infrastructure organisations.  The strategic case for them coming 
together was very strong and it was a particularly strategic use of the Trust’s 
funding to help them unite, achieve economies of scale and be more efficient 
and sustainable, especially in the current economic climate. 

Page 19



 6

• A volunteer brokerage database (£6,000).  Whilst there is no shortage of web-
based services for individuals interested in volunteering, (every local Volunteer 
Centre has a web-site, for example) there is no central resource for charities 
looking for specific skills or for CSR departments looking for employee 
engagement.  The Trust has funded Coalition for Efficiency to undertake a 
mapping exercise of all the volunteer-broking intermediary agencies to create a 
single database.  The single, searchable digital database will make it easy to 
find and distinguish the types of volunteering opportunities the different 
intermediaries provide which are paid for, which are free etc.  An example 
where a relatively modest grant has the potential for great strategic impact 

• Continued funding of Spice’s London Time Credits model of volunteering to 
support its roll-out across London (£385,200 over 3 years).  This ground-
breaking model has created a time-banking ‘currency’ that enables those who 
volunteer to exchange their time credits for trips, events, entertainment, or 
recreational facilities or to donate to another as a gift.  The London Manager is 
based within the City Corporation’s Community and Children’s Services.  The 
model brings the public and voluntary sector together with the business 
community. ‘Spend Partners’ currently include the Barbican, Golden Lane 
Leisure Centre, Millwall Football Club, the City Lit Centre for Adult Learning and 
many others.  The model has been highly successful in opening up volunteering 
to new audiences, in particular, shifting a culture of passive receipt of services 
to active participation and development of co-produced services. 

 
The Trust is in a uniquely privileged position of holding a mass of information 
gathered through its grant-making and social investment activities.  As London’s 
largest grant-maker it has a responsibility to make best use of its financial and non-
financial assets:  its intellectual capital, its power as a convenor, and its ability to act 
as a bridge between the City Corporation and London’s communities. 
 
It will be a key priority that the Trust makes the best use that it can of the knowledge 
and learning it derives from its grant-making and social investments to ensure that all 
its resources are targeted where they are most needed. 
 
The Trust will endeavour to maintain and develop its role as an influential and 
strategic funder by ensuring its assets are used to achieve maximum benefit for 
London’s communities. 
 
 
d) Resources [NB: Section still subject to discussion and approval] 
 
The financial resources available to the Trust for 2014/2015 are as follows: 
 
The grants budget for 2014/15 is £15m.  In addition to this sum, £1M has been 
allocated and committed to the Central London Forward initiative, and [£XM] has 
been designated against specific purposes for spending by financial year end, as 
below: 

  

Page 20



 7

 

Designated Purpose Amount 
£ 

Notes 

 
Central London Forward 
(employability initiative) 

 
1m 

 

 
London’s Core 

 
Xm 

 
Linked to the Trust’s 20 year anniversary 
in 2015:  core support to 20 strategic 
organisations 

 
Small grants programme  

 
Xm 

 
Linked to the Trust’s 20 year anniversary 
in 2015: wide reach; smaller grants; 
particular focus on boroughs of high 
deprivation, lower grant spend 

 
Pan London Successor to 
the Growing Localities 
Scheme 
 

 
Xm 

 
Building on the success of the Growing 
Localities programme; the focus to be 
informed by a shared learning conference 
in June 2014 

 
 

The Trust’s operational budget (local risk) for 2014/15 is £931,000 (after all 
adjustments and recharges are taken into account, including additional funding for 
special initiatives, [NB still to be added: an uplift to support the social investment 
work] and the full cost recovery recharge from the Wembley National Stadium Trust).  
 
The Trust will be reviewing its use of resources and its resource needs during the 
course of 2014/2015.  A key component will be the completion of the move to fully 
on-line grant applications; monitoring; and electronic monitoring of work-flow, likely 
to take full effect in the second half of 2014/15. 
 
In line with the Trust’s commitment to equality, there will continue to be alternative 
options to complement the online processes to ensure no potential applicant is 
excluded. 
 

 

Page 21



 8

 
 
 
 

Section 3 - Departmental Objectives 2014/15 
 
For the coming year, the Trust has set the following 7 departmental objectives: 
 
1. Evidence & Learning – to improve the knowledge and evidence base that informs, and is gleaned from, the Trust’s grant-

making and social investments.  
 
2. Fit for Purpose – to review the Trust’s policies, processes and resources to ensure it is fit to deliver its strategy. 
 
3. Grant-making – to maximise the impact of the funding available to the Trust, ensuring the full budget is committed by 

financial year-end. 
 
4. Social Investment – to contribute to the implementation of the Trust and the City of London’s shared social investment 

strategy. 
 
5. Philanthropy - to further develop the Trust and the City of London’s shared philanthropy strategy to support the ‘City 

Philanthropy – A Wealth of Opportunity’ work to celebrate and encourage more philanthropy in the City for the benefit of 
London, with a particular focus on young professionals. 

 
6. Communication - to review the Trust’s communications strategy (internal & external) and to resource and implement any 

recommendations for improvement. 
 
7. Performance and Corporate Management - to maintain a suitably skilled staff team and to comply with the corporate 

Performance Development Framework. 
 
 
Actions/milestones, target dates (where appropriate), measures of success, responsibilities and resources have been identified in 
respect of each of these objectives, and are detailed in the following tables: 
 
 
 

P
age 22



 9

Departmental Objective 1 
 

Objective: Evidence & Learning – to improve the knowledge and evidence base that informs, and is gleaned from, the Trust’s grant-

making and social investments. 

Priority and rationale: To maximise impact, the Trust’s work needs to always be based on the best evidence of need and good 

practice. 

 

Measure of Success Actions Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

1.1 Each Grants Officer will 

become the designated 

Trust lead in at least one 

broad subject area, 

deepening their knowledge 

of the policy and operating 

environment, and sharing 

this with the team.  

 

Throughout 2014/15 each Grants Officer will: 

• attend appropriate learning network(s) 

 

Designation in 

April 2014, then 

ongoing 

throughout 

2014/15 

 

JF / Grant 

Officers 

 

• be aware of major research pertinent to their subject 

area and share key points with the team 

• organise 1 shared learning event in their designated 

subject area, to which grantees will be invited 

• provide 1 presentation to Committee on their 

designated subject area 

• provide updates to the team on major changes to 

policy/operating environment 

• develop at least 1 pro-active grant proposal in their 

subject area 
 

 

1.2 External evaluations 

will be commissioned for 2 

themes from the Investing 

in Londoners grants 

programmes with the 

model informing the 

evaluation approach to the 

rest of the grant scheme.  

 

 

• Evaluators contracts to be signed 
 

May 2014 

 

TW / Grant 

Officers 

 

• Review meetings with the evaluators will take place Quarterly from 

July 2014 

• There will be evidence of adaption to the delivery of the 

grants programme on the basis of agreed 

recommendations from those meetings 

January 2015 

P
age 23



 10

 

 

1.3 The Trust’s grantees’ 

knowledge and expertise 

will inform the work of the 

Trust (either directly 

solicited or through 

monitoring and evaluation 

reports). 

 

• The Trust’s grants will all be coded on the database by 

outcome sought and these will directly inform 

management and committee reports 

 

Monthly 

 

TW / JGC 

 

• The Trust’s grantees will be asked to share their 

knowledge / expertise to inform the shared learning 

event and presentation to Committee (at least 8 weeks 

prior to each relevant event or presentation) 

Monthly Grant Officers  

• Monitoring report template will have been reviewed and 

put online  
May 2014 TW / JGC  

• All monitoring and evaluation reports for grantees will be 

reviewed and learning points shared with the team  
On-going Grant Officers 

 

 

 

1.4 The Trust’s knowledge 

gained through its 

administration of the 

Social Investment Fund 

will inform the work of the 

Trust. 

 

 

• All Investment monitoring reports will be reviewed and 

lessons on social impact will be shared with the team 

and wider investor networks  

 

Quarterly 

 

TW 

 

 

Corporate Considerations 

Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 
  

P
age 24



 11

Departmental Objective 2 

 

Objective: Fit for Purpose – to review the Trust’s policies, processes and resources, to ensure it is fit to deliver its strategy. 

Priority and rationale: Six months into the delivery of the Trust’s new grants programmes; and given the much changed external 

context; it is timely to review and ensure the Trust’s policies, processes and resources are in the best possible shape to support 

strategic delivery. 

 

Measure of Success Actions Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

2.1 The Governance of 

Bridge House Estates (the 

underlying charity) and the 

Trust will be understood by 

all CoL Members fulfilling 

their trustee function on 

behalf of CoL as the sole 

corporate trustee of BHE. 
 

 

• All new Members will receive this information as part of 

their inductions 

 

As required 
 

DF 

 
 

• All existing Members will receive an annual refresher 

briefing 
During 2014/15 

 

DF  

• All Trust reports will be worded accurately to reflect the 

governance arrangements 
Monthly Grants Officers  

 

2.2 The Policy governing 

the spending of BHE 

income surplus to the 

requirements of the 

primary charitable objects 

(the bridges) will be clear 

and relevant and any 

changes appropriately 

consulted on. 
 

 

• The Policy reviewed will be completed 

 
 

 

July 2014 

 

DF (working 

with CoL as 

Trustee of 

Bridge House 

Estates) 

 

  

P
age 25



 12

 

2.3 The Trust’s processes 

will be straightforward, 

effective, relevant and 

user-friendly for both 

applicants and team 

members. 

 

• The results of the Grantee perception survey (external 

research into grantees’ experience of the Trust) will be 

reviewed and a timetable agreed for implementation of 

recommendations 

 

Review: June 

2014 

Implementation: 

September 2014 

 

TW 

 
 

• The flow of work from point of application to rejection or 

conclusion of grant/social investment, and the supporting 

processes, will be reviewed and compared with good 

practice in grant-making/social investment 

July 2014 CR  

• The installation of the user-friendly GIFTs database 

update will be completed 
May 2014 JGC  

• Monitoring of work flow will be undertaken through the 

database will be undertaken 
Bi-monthly JGC  

• The interaction with CoL central services will be reviewed 

and opportunities for improvement seized 

 

May 2014 & on-

going 

DF  

 

2.4 The Trust will have the 

resources it needs to 

deliver its mission. 

 

• The team’s capacity, structure, and job roles will be 

reviewed 

 

October 2014 
 

DF 

 
 

• The Social Investment Financial Analyst contract will be 

awarded 
May 2014 
 

DF / TW  

• The resources for the monitoring officer will be requested 

from the relevant Committees and, subject to approval, 

an appointment will be made 

Request: May 

2014 

Appointment by 

September 2014 

DF / TW  

• All applications for strategic or exceptional grants will 

include budget lines for the required capacity from the 

Trust or CoL departments, where necessary 

Monthly Grant Officers 

 

 

• A review of the team’s IT hardware & software needs will 

be completed (building on the database upgrade) 

 

June 2014 JGC  

 
  

P
age 26



 13

 

Corporate Considerations 

Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 
  

P
age 27



 14

Departmental Objective 3 

 

Objective: Grant-making – to maximise the impact of the funding available to the Trust, ensuring the full budget is committed by 

financial year end. 

Priority and rationale: The needs of Londoners are greater than the resources available, so the Trust must ensure it grants all of its 

available money, always maximising impact. 

 

Measure of Success Actions / Milestones Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

3.1 High quality grant 

applications are received 

and each is subject to 

professional assessment. 

 

• Awareness of the grants programme is maintained and 

raised in areas of under-representation (see objective 6) 

 

On-going 

 

Full team 

 
 

• A review of the Trust’s grant-making rules (including 

quantum, length, number held, continuation funding and 

the balance between reactive and proactive grants) is 

completed and recommendations taken to committee 

Completed by 

May 2014 

Committee: June 

2014 

DF / CR 

 

 

• The Member’s Handbook is updated following the review 

of policy, procedure and grant-making rules 

 

September 2014 CR  

 

3.2 By the end of the 

financial year 2015, the 

Trust accounts will show 

the full grants budget has 

been committed. 
 

 

• The detailed plans to spend the project specific 

designated reserves will have been worked up for 

consideration by committee 

 

September 2014 
 

DF / Grant 

Officers 

 
 

• 40% of the grants budget will have been committed by 

September 2014; 65% by December 2014; 100% by 

April 2015 

 

As stated Grant Officers  

  

P
age 28



 15

 

3.3 All of the Trust’s 

grantees will have access 

to a comprehensive range 

of expertise & support 

which they can access to 

strengthen their 

organisations and increase 

the impact of their grants. 
 

 

• The review of the Trust’s capacity building support will be 
completed including a gaps analysis and 

recommendations made 

 

June 2014 

 

Grant Officers 

 
 

• The Trust will have in place contracts with suppliers to 

provide the model recommended by the review 
September 2014 DF  

 

3.4 The Trust will be 

maximising the use of its 

non-financial assets in 

support of the grant-

making. 
 

 
• The Trust will have identified synergies with CoL 

departments and be working together where appropriate 

(including EDO, Community & Children’s Services and 

Open Spaces) 

 

March 2015 
 

Full Team 

 
 

 

Corporate Considerations 
Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 
  

P
age 29



 16

 

Departmental Objective 4 

 

Objective: Social Investment – to contribute to the implementation of the Trust and the City of London’s shared social investment 

strategy. 

Priority and rationale: to grow the social investment market and to lead by example through administering a Social Investment Fund. 

 

Measure of Success Actions / Milestones Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

4.1 The Social Investment 

Fund will be appropriately 

resourced to deliver relevant 

elements of the Trust and 

CoL’s shared strategy. 
 

 

• A contract will be signed with the part-time financial 

analyst 

 

May 2014  

 

 

DF / TW 

 

• A Role Description for the permanent role will be 

developed 
October 2014 DF / TW  

 

4.2 At least a further £3m of 

the Social Investment Fund 

will have been invested. 
 

 
• Contracts will be signed with investees to the value of at 

least £1.5m by May 2014 and £3m by October 2014 

 

As stated 

 

DF / TW 

 

 

4.3 A communications plan 

for Social Investment will 

have been agreed and 

implemented. 

 

• A communications plan will have been signed off and will 

be ongoing by the Trust/PRO/EDO 

 

July 2014 

 

 

DF 

 

• The Trust’s team, and the Social Investment Committee 

will all be clear on key messages, as well as the leading 

members of CoL’s executive and membership (as 

identified in the plan) 

 

September 2014 

 

DF  

  

P
age 30



 17

 

4.4 Research into the 

relationship between the 

Trust’s grant-making and the 

social investment will be 

complete and a plan 

developed and launched. 
 

 

• The focus group and bilateral research will have been 

completed, analysed, and recommendations taken to 

committee 

 

June 2014 

 

 

 

DF / TW 

 

• The programme will be underway October 2014 
 

DF / TW  

 

Corporate Considerations 

Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 
  

P
age 31



 18

Departmental Objective 5 

 

Objective: Philanthropy – to further develop the Trust and the City of London’s shared philanthropy strategy; to support the ‘City 

Philanthropy – a Wealth of Opportunity’ work to celebrate and encourage more philanthropy in the City for the benefit of London, with 

a particular focus on young professionals. 

Priority and rationale: To increase the amount and quality of philanthropic giving by City workers for the benefit of London and 

beyond. 

 

Measure of Success Actions Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

5.1 The Trust and CoL’s 

shared philanthropy strategy 

will be further developed and 

communicated to Members 

and lead officers. 

 

 

• The philanthropy strategy will be produced 
 

July 2014 

 

JF / CC 

 

• The strategy will be published on the Trust and CoL 

websites 
September 2014  

• A briefing will have been given to Members and Chief 

Officers 

 

December 2014  

 

5.2 A communications plan 

supporting the delivery of the 

strategy will be developed. 

 

 

• The communications plan will be produced 
 

July 2014 

 

JF / CC 

 

• Contact will be made with key individuals and 

organisations identified in the plan 

 

January 2015  

 

5.3 10% of young 

professionals arriving in the 

City through graduate 

recruitment programmes will 

have been targeted through 

HR leads as potential 

philanthropists. 

 

 

• All HR leads in the City for Graduate recruitment will be 

contacted and routes to contact new recruits identified 

 

September 2014 

 

JF / CC 

 

  

P
age 32



 19

 

5.4 To have recruited at least 

1 further FTSE 100 firm to 

recognise regular giving 

(time/money/skills) as a key 

component of the appraisal 

process. 

 

 

• The recruited employer is able to demonstrate through 

appraisal paperwork the adoption of this approach 

 

March 2015 
 

JF / CC 

 

 

Corporate Considerations 

Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 
  

P
age 33



 20

Departmental Objective 6 

 

Objective: Communication - to review the Trust’s communications strategy (internal & external) and to resource and implement any 

recommendations for improvement. 

Priority and rationale: Good communication will amplify the work of our grantees, the Trust, and the CoL as its trustee. This should 

encourage grants applications, and take forward the social investment and philanthropy work (Objectives 4 & 5). 

 

Measure of Success Actions / Milestones Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

6.1 The Trust will develop a 

Communications plan 

informed by & 

complementary to the CoL 

Communications Strategy 

 

• The Communications plan is produced 
 

July 2014 

 

DF/JF 

 

• High quality grant applications are being received On-going  

• The name recognition and profile of CBT within CoL is 

increased so all employees & Members are aware - 

achieved through presentations at every corporate & 

Member induction; features in 3 CoL publications; and 2 

intranet profiles 

March 2015  

• Key external stakeholders are aware of the Trust’s work 

and its funding programme , to include at least 2 formal 

contacts per year 
 

March 2015  

 

6.2 The Trust will have 

revised its website to make 

the content and application 

process more user-friendly; 

to amplify the work of our 

grantees and to encourage 

shared learning and good 

practice. 

 

 

• New images are commissioned for use on the website 

 

July 2014 

 

TW / GL 

 

• The text on the website will have been updated October 2014 TW / GL  

  

P
age 34



 21

 

6.3 The Trust will have 

reviewed its annual meetings 

timetable (internal and 

external network meetings): 

rationalising content and 

number where possible. 

 

 

• A revised schedule with leads and attendees and 

rationale for the meetings will be completed 

 

May 2014 

 

DF / CB 

 

 

6.4 The Trust will have 

launched its 2015, 20 year 

anniversary programme 

 

 

• The Trust will have completed an events and 

publications schedule to be considered by Committee 

 

October 2014 

 

DF/ JF 

 

• Launch of Anniversary programme to take place 

 
March 2015 Full Team  

 
 
 

Corporate Considerations 

Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 
  

P
age 35



 22

 

Departmental Objective 7 

 

Objective: Performance and Corporate Management – to maintain a suitably skilled staff team and to comply with the corporate 

Performance Development Framework. 

Priority and rationale: A well-trained and enthusiastic team, working to a coherent plan, will inevitably produce the best results. 

 

Measure of Success Actions Target Date Responsibility Resources 
 

7.1 The full team 

complement will be 

maintained and all new 

starters will receive a full 

induction. 

 

 

• All vacancies will be filled within 3 months of notice 

being given 

 

As required 

 

Line Managers 

 

• All new starters will receive an induction on arrival at 

the Trust 
As required Line Managers  

 

7.2 All staff will be fully 

conversant in the 

Performance Development 

Framework and actively 

participating in 

appropriate/required training 

and the appraisal process. 

 

 

• All staff will complete required training & the appraisals 

within specified deadlines 

 

End of Year: 

April 2014 

 

Mid Year: 

October 2014 

 

Line Managers 

 

 

7.3 The Trust’s team will 

undertake review, planning 

and team-building events 

annually. 

 

 

• The full team will attend an away and the actions from 

the away day will directly feed into the business plan 

 

Autumn 2014 

 

Full Team 

 

  

P
age 36



 23

 

7.4 The Trust’s Committee 

Members are able to play 

their full part in the 

governance of the trust and 

as ambassadors for its work. 

 

 

• New Members will receive a full induction within 2 

months of joining the committee 

 

As required 

 

DF 

 

• Each Member will attend at least 2 grantee visits / 

events per year 
March 2015 Grant Officers  

 

Corporate Considerations 

Money People Environment Managing Business 
 
 
 

   

 

P
age 37



 24

 
Section 4 - The City Together Strategy and Corporate Plan 
 
The City Together Strategy: The Heart of a World Class City 2008 – 2014  
The Community Strategy for the City of London sets out its vision: 
“The City Together will work to support the City of London as a leading international 
financial and business centre in a way that meets the needs of its diverse communities 
and neighbours.” 
 
It comprises 5 themes which are the key attributes of the City of London: 

1. is competitive and promotes opportunity  
2. supports our communities  
3. protects, promotes and enhances our environment  
4. is vibrant and culturally rich  
5. is safer and stronger 

 
Much of the Trust’s work supports the themes of The City Together. Whilst this City 
Corporation strategy is specifically for the Square Mile, the Corporation has an 
increasingly outward focus to the rest of London, which aligns with the Trust’s area of 
benefit.  ‘A world class city’ needs a hinterland from which to draw a well-educated and 
healthy workforce. This in turn relies upon vibrant local communities with good quality 
public and community services. The voluntary and community sector plays a valuable 
and independent role in helping make London a better place to live and the City Bridge 
Trust plays an important role in supporting its on-going success.  Examples of grants 
supporting these themes are :  
 
Competitive and promotes opportunity 
Markfield Project - £99,000 towards a programme of sports, arts and leisure activities 
for young people with learning difficulties. 
Flash Musicals - £24,000 towards performing arts workshops for young disabled people. 
 
Supports our communities 
Chinese National Healthy Living Centre – £145,000 towards the London Chinese 
Dementia and Alzheimer’s Project. 
Migrants Resource Centre  - £31,100 towards a cross-community media project. 
 
Protects, promotes and enhances our environment 
Garden Classroom - £25,000 towards an environmental education programme for 
children and young people. 
Hornbeam Centre - £60,000 towards a Community Environment Worker. 
 
Is vibrant and culturally rich 
Chickenshed Theatre – £38,100 towards an inclusive programme for children and 
families to learn about and value different cultures. 
Otakar Kraus Music Trust - £35,600 towards a specialised music programme for 
children with special needs. 
 
Is safer and stronger 
Beyond Youth - £38,000 towards the cost of its Chance to Change programme at HMP 
Send. 
London Citizens - £110,000 towards the salary costs of the CitySafe Co-ordinators. 
 

Page 38



 25

The CoL Corporate Plan 2014-18 
 
The City of London’s corporate vision is [NB subject to possible amendment of 
wording depending on decision of Court]: 
 
The City of London Corporation will support and promote the City of London as 
the world leader in international finance and business services, and will 
maintain high quality, accessible and responsive services benefiting its 
communities, neighbours, London and the nation. 
 
From this overall vision we have three strategic aims: 

• To support and promote ‘The City’ as the world leader in international finance 
and business services. 

• To provide modern, efficient and high quality local services and policing within 
the Square Mile for workers, residents and visitors with a view to delivering 
sustainable outcomes. 

• To provide valued services to London and the nation. 
 

 
The activities of the City Bridge Trust fall squarely within the third of these, providing 
as we do support for third sector organisations working for the benefit of people across 
Greater London. 
 
Within the Key Policy Priorities that help to deliver the plan, City Bridge Trust is 
specifically mentioned within KPP4 : 
 
Maximising the opportunities and benefits afforded by our role as a good neighbour and 
major sponsor of culture and the arts. 
 
  

Page 39



 26

Section 5 - Risk Management 2014-17 

This Risk Register reviews the risks facing the City Bridge Trust, the charitable funding 
arm of Bridge House Estates. In order to comply with current legislation (SORP 2005), 
the Trustee is required to report on risk management in its Annual Report. Copies of 
the 2012/13 report have been circulated and are available on the Trust’s website. 

Risk is reviewed regularly as part of the Departmental Management process and is 
reviewed on a quarterly basis, to ensure that the Trust is clear on the nature of the 
risks it faces in the orderly completion of its business and the actions in place to 
ameliorate the level of risk are appropriate and proportionate. 

The following pages highlight the three identified CBT risks: 

  

Page 40



 27

Risk:  

CB1 

Financial loss through fraud or theft. 
Gross Risk R 

Likelihood Impact 

Links to:   4 4 

Detail 

A major risk for the Trust would be loss through a fraud or theft either by an external applicant or grant holder, or by abuse of 

the systems internally.  This is addressed through our comprehensive documentation of financial procedures and systems which 

have been approved by Internal and External Audit and have been approved by Internal and External Audit and which are 

subject to regular review. Since its inception in 1995, the Trust's exposure to fraud has been very low, with only 4 identified 

cases of fraud during this period.  However, during 2012, the Trust was informed of alleged fraud within 2 of its funded 

organisations.  These are being investigated by Internal Audit which has also conducted a Due Diligence review of the Trust. 

Specific Threats/Issues Mitigating Actions 
1)  Allegation of fraud within 2 organisations funded by 

the Trust. 

1)  Due diligence review of the Trust undertaken by Internal Audit & its 

recommendations implemented. 

2)  Receipt of a fraudulent application. 

2)  All CBT staff attend fraud awareness training; no main grants awarded without a 

site visit; compliance checks with Charity Commission & Companies House; 

participation in funders' networks where intelligence about potential fraud is shared. 

3)  Internal fraud is committed. 

3)  Careful segregation of duties in place, including an internationally renowned 

grants management system which provides an audit trail of key events carried out 

by users during the grants management process; authorisation controls for 

payments in place; payment function split between CBT team and CoL payment 

team. 

            

Summary Net Risk A 

The risk of fraud or theft is a very real one.  The Trust's systems  are designed to minimise the risk 

of fraud and have recently been strengthened in this respect.  

Likelihood Impact 

3 3 

Control Evaluation 

A 

 

Risk:  Over/under commitment of the Trust's grants budget. Gross Risk A 

P
age 41



 28

CB2 Likelihood Impact 

Links to:   4 2 

Detail 
Officers provide the Grants Committee with a detailed budget update at each of its 10 meetings throughout the year.  The Trust 

aims to distribute its funds evenly throughout the year and to spend the grants budget in full by the financial year end (unless 

there are exceptional circumstances). 

Specific Threats/Issues Mitigating Actions 

1)  Miscalculation of the figures. 
1)  Several members of the team check the figures for accuracy before the papers 

are dispatched. 

2)  Mistakes in data entry in grants database being 

carried over into the report. 
2)  The report is structured to pick up possible mistakes on the database. The 

Chamberlain regularly cross-references. 

3)  Not sufficient quality applications received to the 

Investing in Londoners grants programme 

3)  The Trust publicises its grants programme through London networks and 

participates on appropriate platforms.  It also undertakes some evidence backed 

pro-active grant making. 

4)  Not able to process sufficient applications to the 

Investing in Londoners grants programme to commit the 

full grants budget 

 

 

4)  The Trust is improving its grant making process:  fully online applications are 

now implemented and work has commenced on the proportionality of due 

diligence. 

            

Summary Net Risk G 

The report used by the Trust to monitor the grants spend has recently been reviewed and is an 

effective management tool.  Additional scrutiny by the Chamberlain provides an additional check 

and balance.  Effective communication of the Investing in Londoners grants programme to potential 

applications maintains the flow of quality applications; and the evidence-backed pro-active grant-

making enables the Trust to spend its grants budget without compromising quality.  Grants 

processes are subject to continual review and improvement to ensure robust and proportionate due 

diligence while allowing for sufficient grants applications to come to the decision-making committee. 

Likelihood Impact 

1 2 

Control Evaluation 

G 

 

 
 

Risk:  Major failure in IS systems leading to significant disruption to Gross Risk R 

P
age 42



 29

CB3 business, inability to meet legal or regulatory requirements, 

effect on health and safety, financial or reputational loss. 
Likelihood Impact 

Links to:   4 4 

Detail 

Specific Threats/Issues Mitigating Actions 

1) Potential to cause financial hardship to funded 

organisations. 

Monday to Thursday an "incremental" backup is taken.  This ensures that any data 

that has changed since the previous Friday is backed up.  Every Friday, a full 

backup is taken.  Each day's backups are sent off-site, normally the morning after 

the backup job has run in the case of tape based backups.  Backup tapes are kept 

off site for 3 months.  The PC Networks team monitor the backups to ensure that 

all the jobs complete correctly.  The team aims to ensure that any restore requests 

are completed within 48 hours of receiving the request.  The Trust's Grants 

Database is subject to disaster testing. 

2) Potential to damage the reputation of the Trust and 

the City Corporation.  

            

Summary Net Risk G 

The Trust is dependent on the City Corporation's ICT recovery plans.  As such, this means the risk 

would only materialise if the disaster recovery arrangements failed which places the risk in the 

unlikely category. 

 

Likelihood Impact 

2 2 

Control Evaluation 

G 

 

 

P
age 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
City Bridge Trust Business Plan Summary 2014-15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Strategic Aims are: 

The City Bridge Trust aims to address disadvantage by 
supporting charitable activity across Greater London through 
quality grant-making and related activities within clearly 
defined priorities.  As an independent trust we have an 
important role to play in a pluralist society.  We value 
diversity and are committed to fairness and transparency in 
our grant-making. 

We believe in consulting widely and regularly so that we can 
respond to changing needs. We value user involvement in 
the delivery of services. We know that more can be achieved 
through collaboration with other funders and with the third 
sector. We aim to treat applicants with courtesy, respect and 
offer a speedy and efficient service. 

Our Key Objectives are: 
• To improve the knowledge and evidence base that informs, 

and is gleaned from, the Trust’s grant-making and social 
investments.  

• To review the Trust’s policies, processes and resources to 
ensure it is fit to deliver its strategy. 

• To maximise the impact of the funding available to the Trust, 
ensuring the full budget is committed by financial year-end. 

• To contribute to the implementation of the Trust & CoL’s 
shared social investment strategy. 

• To further develop the Trust & CoL’s shared philanthropy 
strategy to support the “City Philanthropy – A Wealth of 
Opportunity” work to celebrate and encourage more 
philanthropy in the City for the benefit of London; with a 
particular focus on young professionals. 

• To review the Trust’s communications strategy (internal & 
external) and to resource and implement any 
recommendations for improvement. 

• To maintain a suitably skilled staff team and to comply with 
the corporate Performance Development Framework. 

 

Our Key Performance Indicators are: 
Description:  

 

[to be completed following review session with the Deputy Town Clerk of KPIs 

set out below] 

 

Previous Year 

Performance (where 

comparable) 

Target: 

1. n/a  

2. n/a  

3. n/a  

4. n/a  

5. n/a  

6. n/a  

7. n/a  

P
age 45



P
age 46

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
Financial and staffing summary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Financial Information: 

 

Expenditure 

2012/13 

Actual 

2013/14 

Original 

Budget 

2013/14 

Revised 

Budget  

(latest 

approved ) 

2013/14 

Forecast Outturn 

(latest) 

2014/15 

Original 

Budget 

 

N.B. 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 % £000  

        Employees 721 753 793 793  728  

Premises  0 0 0 0  0  

Transport  3 4 4 4  4  

Supplies & Services 216 279 281 281  199  

Support services        

Contingencies  0    0  

Unidentified Savings  0    0  

Total Expenditure 940 1,036 1,078 1,078  931 1 

        Total Income (39) (75) (75) (75)  (77) 2 

Total Local Risk 901 961 1,003 1,003  854  

Central Risk 14,606 19,150 22,322 22,322  15,950 3 

        Total Local and Central 15,507 20,111 23,325 23,325  16,804  

        Recharges 77 79 79 79  74  

Total Net Expenditure 15,584 20,190 23,404 23,404  16,878  

 

Our Staffing is made up of: 

[NB HR CHECKING STATS] 
 

• Headcount -15 

• Full time - 12 
• Part time - 3 

• Turnover 13/14 – 3 

staff (2.6 posts) 
• Vacancies – 1 

• Gender – 8m / 7f 

• Age range – 20s – 50s 

• City of London Service 

– 6 members of the 

team have 10+ years 

• Background – a 

culturally and socially 
very diverse team 

 
Notes on Staffing 
Information: 

• There will be two vacancies 

early in 14/15 [NB MAYBE 

1] 

 

 

Notes on Financial Information: 
1. Forecast local risk outturn includes [NB NOTE TO BE CONFIRMED WITH CHAMBERLAIN’S] 

2. WNST income paid in arrears.   

3. Underspend on central risk in 2013/14 due to Quinquennial review of grant making priorities, increased 

due diligence requirements and lack of capacity. 

P
age 47



P
age 48

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

 

City Bridge Trust Organisational Chart 
 

 

Chief Grants 

Officer 

David Farnsworth 

Deputy Chief 

Grants Officer 

Jenny Field 

Principal Grants Officer (seconded 

to Wembley National Stadium Trust)  

(p/t) 

Stewart Goshawk  
Principal Grants 

Officer 

Ciaran Rafferty 

Administrative 

Officer (Payments) 

Anita Williams 

Administrative 

Officer (p/t) 

Michael Shona 

Financial 

Analyst 

(p/t) 

Principal Grants  

Officer (M&E) 

Tim Wilson 

Grants Officer 

Julia Mirkin 

Grants Officer  

Sandra Davidson 

Website Manager & 

Information Officer 

Graham Lee  

Clerical Assistant 

Ibrahim Hussein 

Grants 

Officer M&E 

Jemma Grieve 

Combes 

Grants Officer 

(subject to 

funding) 

 Executive Assistant 
Cheryl Belmont 

Grants Assistant 

Martin Hall 

(p/t Administrator to Wembley 

National Stadium Trust) 

Compliance Officer  

(subject to funding) 

P
age 49



P
age 50

T
his page is intentionally left blank



  THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  
 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 28th January to 25th February 2014 

 

Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
 

29.01.14 London Housing 
Foundation 

Strategy Day Chief Grants Officer Euston Square The Chief Grants Officer was invited to 
speak at the London Housing Foundation’s 
Strategy Day. He spoke on the themes of 
destitution and funder collaboration. 

30.01.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Seminar Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer and City 
Corporation’s Social 
Investment Advisor, 
Katie Hill 

Guildhall The first roundtable of organisations 
interested in exploring the bridge between 
grant-making and social investment. This 
meeting involved other funders and will help 
inform your forthcoming programme 
“Supporting Charitable Involvement in Social 
Investment”. 

31.01.14 Greenhouse  Visit to a 
Greenhouse 
project 

Deputy Town Clerk; 
Chief Grants Officer 

Ealing, 
London W1 

The Deputy Town Clerk and the Chief 
Grants Officer visited St Anne’s School in 
Ealing, to see a Greenhouse project, which 
CBT funds, in action. 

04.02.14 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Training course Julia Mirkin, Grants 
Officer 

Kings Cross, 
London 

Your Grants Officer attended a course on 
‘Reading Applicants’ Accounts’ with 
representatives from other charitable 
foundations. 

04.02.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Seminar Alderman Peter 
Hewitt (Chairman of 
the Social 
Investment Board) 
and Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall The second roundtable of organisations 
interested in exploring the bridge between 
grant-making and social investment. This 
meeting involved market intermediaries and 
will help inform your forthcoming programme 
“Supporting Charitable Involvement in Social 
Investment”. 

05.02.14 Nehemiah Project Monitoring visit Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Streatham A visit to this grant holder and the 
opportunity to discuss the work with the 
beneficiaries who are former prisoners 

P
age 51



06.02.14 London Youth Visit Chief Grants Officer Coram’s Fields The Chief Grants Officer met with the Chief 
Executive of London Youth and 
accompanied her on a visit to the Coram’s 
Fields Youth Club. 

10.02.14 Foundations 
Forum 

Meeting Chief Grants Officer Imperial War 
Museum 

A regular meeting of London funders 
(rotating venues). 

10.02.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Seminar Tim Wilson and 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants 
Officers, City 
Corporation’s Social 
Investment Advisor, 
Katie Hill 

Guildhall The third and final roundtable of 
organisations interested in exploring the 
bridge between grant-making and social 
investment. This meeting involved charities 
and will help inform your forthcoming 
programme “Supporting Charitable 
Involvement in Social Investment”. 

14.02.14 St Giles’ Trust Visit Deputy Town Clerk; 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

Camberwell, 
London SE5 

The Deputy Town Clerk accompanied the 
Chief Grants Officer on a visit to see more of 
the work which CBT funds. 

21.02.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Meeting Chief Grants Officer Guildhall The Chief Grants Officer gave a briefing on 
the work of the Trust, and the new 
programmes, to the Joint Emergency 
Planning & Business Continuity Steering 
Group, as part of their regular meeting. 

24.02.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Corporation 
Induction 
Course 

Chief Grants Officer Guildhall The Chief Grants Officer spoke at a 
Corporation Induction course on the work of 
the City Bridge Trust and its new 
programmes.  

17.02.14 Creative & 
Cultural Skills 

Update on 
Apprenticeships 
Programme 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Arts Council, 
SW1 

A valuable update on the implementation of 
the Arts Council’s apprenticeships 
programme, featuring some insightful case 
studies from groups represented. 

20.02.14 Rayne 
Foundation 

Meeting Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Marble Arch An opportunity to discuss Rayne 
Foundation’s plans to develop a network of 
charitable funders providing repayable 
finance to support arts activities. 

P
age 52



21.02.14 London Funders Action Group 
on Children & 
Young People 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

LF Offices, 
Kings Cross 

An informal meeting to look at the scope of 
current funding for out of school hours 
services and activities for young people. 

25.02.14 Barbican Monitoring visit Deputy Chairman, 
Mrs Littlechild and 
Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Barbican and 
Randal Cremer 
Primary School 
(Hackney)  

An opportunity to discuss the Barbican’s 
Creative Learning work in East London, 
followed by a very enjoyable visit to see 
some of the work take place with a group of 
Year 5 primary school children. 

 
General Events and Receptions  

Attended 28th January to 25th February 2014 
 

Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
  

30.01.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Finance 
Committee 
Dinner 

Chief Grants Officer Plaisterers’ Hall The Chief Grants Officer attended the 
Finance Committee’s Annual Dinner at the 
kind invitation of their Chairman. 

04.02.14 City of London 
Corporation 

Barbican Centre 
Board Dinner 

Chief Grants Officer Barbican Art 
Gallery 

The Chief Grants Officer attended the 
Barbican Centre Board’s Annual Dinner at 
the kind invitation of their Chairman. 

04.02.14 Kensington and 
Chelsea 
Foundation 

Reception Deputy Ken Ayers Kensington and 
Chelsea 
Foundation 

Ken Ayers attended a performance of the 
Intermission Theatre, followed by a 
reception at the Kensington and Chelsea 
Foundation, which CBT funds. 

 

P
age 53



P
age 54

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust 13 Mar 2014 

Subject:  

Grant Applications Statistical Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For decision 

 

 
Summary 

This paper summarises applications received and action taken under your 
grants programmes in 2013/14.  27 applications will be dealt with at today’s 
meeting, including 22 grant recommendations for a total recommended sum of 
£2,570,060.  This leaves £3,533,480 remaining on your grants budget for 
2013/4. Proposals for the use of this balance are included in the Chief Grants 
Officer’s report. 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to: 

• Note the report 

• Consider the grant recommendations in the subsequent annexes 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 

1.1 This paper summarises action taken in 2013/14 on grant applications received 
under your Working with Londoners and Investing in Londoners grants 
programmes.  It charts overall spend against your current year grants budget, 
grants made by programme outcomes, action taken on applications received 
and a summary of today’s recommendations. 
 

1.2 City Bridge Trust grants are awarded in line with your policy guidance which 
includes the priorities and exclusions that were ratified for the Trust by the 
Court of Common Council, in July 2013.  
 

Grants budget 2013/14 
 
2.1 27 applications will be dealt with at today’s meeting of which 22 are 

recommended for a grant for a total recommended sum of £2,570,060.  The 
implications of today’s recommendations are shown in Table 1 against the 
original grants budget for 2013/14.  The overall grants budget includes 
£2,892,000 carried forward from 2012/13 (approved by the Resource 
Allocation Sub-Committee in July 2013) and grant approvals subsequently 
written back or revoked in 2013/14 to date of £142,710.   

 
2.2 If you agree the applications recommended for a grant today this will leave 

£3,533,480 unspent on your grants budget for 2013/4.  The Chief Grants 

Agenda Item 6

Page 55



Officer’s report, elsewhere in your papers, outlines proposals carry forward 
the remaining budget into 2014/15 as a designated reserve for specific 
programmes of work, subject to your approval of a joint paper by the Chief 
Grants Officer and the Chamberlain to be brought to your next meeting. 
 
Table 1: Overall spend against 2013/14 budget 

 

  Grants budget Grants spend 

Original Grants Budget £14,950,000   

Carry forward from 2012/13  £2,892,000   

Write-Backs & Revocations £142,710   

Total Budget Available £17,984,710   

   
Previous committee meetings     

April 2013   £1,430,095 

May 2013   £959,930 

June 2013   £992,107 

July 2013   £1,126,120 

September 2013   £1,195,427 

October 3/13   £1,162,395 

October 30/13   £1,102,160 

November 2013   £1,169,530 

January 2014   £1,163,206 

February 2014   £1,580,200 

Sub-total approved spend   £11,881,170 

Remaining budget £6,103,540   

   
Today's recommendations     

March 2014     

Working with Londoners   £342,520 

Investing in Londoners   £2,227,540 

Total March 2014   £2,570,060 

Total annual spend   £14,451,230 

Remaining budget £3,533,480   

 

Grants made by outcome area 

3.1 This is another unusual month as grants have been recommended across 
both your Working with Londoners and new Investing in Londoners grants 
programmes.  Working with Londoners is dealt with first.  Table 2 shows the 
breakdown of grants awarded this financial year by outcome area for Working 
with Londoners and Charts 1 and 2 show the proportion of grants awarded, 
including today’s recommendations by outcome area. Chart 1 is based on the 
number of grants awarded and Chart 2 is based on the value of grants 
awarded.   

 

Page 56



Table 2: Grant approvals by outcome area (Working with Londoners) 

 

Fund/Program 

Number of grants Value of grants 

Year 
to date 

Today's 
meeting Total 

Year to 
date 

Today's 
meeting Total 

Accessible London 25 0 25 £1,329,932 £0 £1,329,932 

Accessible Sports 4 0 4 £234,080 £0 £234,080 

Bridging Communities 24 1 25 £1,517,245 £109,120 £1,626,365 

Eco-audits 6 0 6 £14,105 £0 £14,105 

Improving Londoners' 
Mental Health 12 0 12 £857,450 £0 £857,450 

London's Environment 13 0 13 £656,270 £0 £656,270 

Older Londoners 18 0 18 £1,229,855 £0 £1,229,855 

Positive Transitions to 
Independent Living 23 0 23 £1,816,750 £0 £1,816,750 

Strengthening the 
Third Sector 16 2 18 £1,470,000 £233,400 £1,703,400 

Exceptional Grants 1 0 1 £80,000 £0 £80,000 

Strategic Initiatives 11 0 11 £605,507 £0 £605,507 

Grand Total 153 3 156 £9,811,194 £342,520 £10,153,714 

 
 

 
 
 
 

16%

3%

16%

4%

8%

8%

12%

15%

12%

1%

7%

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Accessible London

Accessible Sports

Bridging Communities

Eco-audits

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

London's Environment

Older Londoners

Positive Transitions to Independent Living

Strengthening the Third Sector

Exceptional Grants

Strategic Initiatives

Chart 1: % of grants made by outcome area by 

number of grants (Working with Londoners)

Year to date

Today's meeting

Page 57



 
 
 
3.2 Although you have awarded grants across all of your funding priorities you will 

see that there is some variation in the proportion of grants awarded by 
programme.  The programmes you have awarded most grants for in terms of 
number and grant amount are Positive Transitions to Independent Living, 
Bridging Communities and Accessible London.  Grant awards under 
Strengthening the Third Sector have also been high by value although the 
number of grants awarded is lower.  This is because awards made under this 
programme are often relatively high due to the strategic nature of the work.  
Slightly fewer grants have been made under ‘Improving Londoner’s Mental 
Health’ which is possibly due to the specialist nature of this work.  There are 
also fewer grants for ‘London’s Environment’ and eco-audits.  Eco-audits are 
slightly different from your usual grants programmes as instead of receiving a 
direct monetary award, the Trust pays for the costs of an organisational eco-
audit.  This scheme has been continued under your Investing in Londoners 
programme and it is notable that with a new simple online application form 
and better promotion, numbers are steadily increasing. 

 
3.3 Table 2 shows the grants awarded to date under your Investing in 

Londoners programme.  You will notice a relatively large amount of funding 
has been awarded under ‘Partnership programmes–hardship funds’.  This is 
the block funding awarded to Prisoners Abroad and Buttle UK to administer 
hardship funds for prisoners returning to London from abroad and survivors of 
domestic violence respectively.  You will also note that £300k was awarded to 
London Youth for organisations that successfully achieve one of its Quality 
Marks.  As it is very early days for this programme the proportions of grants 
made by programme have not been shown but will be in future meetings.   

13%

2%

16%

0%

8%

6%

12%

18%

17%

1%

6%

£0 £500,000 £1,000,000 £1,500,000 £2,000,000

Accessible London

Accessible Sports

Bridging Communities

Eco-audits

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

London's Environment

Older Londoners

Positive Transitions to Independent…

Strengthening the Third Sector

Exceptional Grants

Strategic Initiatives

Chart 2: % of grants made by outcome area by 

value of grants (Working with Londoners)

Year to date

Today's meeting

Page 58



Table 3: Grant approvals by outcome area (Investing in Londoners) 
 

Fund/Program 
Year to 

date 
Today's 
meeting Total 

Year to 
date 

Today's 
meeting Total 

English for Speakers of 
Other Languages 0 1 1 £0 £12,000 £12,000 

Improving Londoner's 
mental health 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Improving London's 
environment 0 1 1 £0 £388,000 £388,000 

Making London more 
inclusive 3 2 5 £121,276 £141,500 £262,776 

Making London safer 0 1 1 £0 £88,000 £88,000 

Older Londoners 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Reducing poverty 0 3 3 £0 £341,290 £341,290 

Resettlement and 
rehabilitation of 
offenders 0 1 1 £0 £50,000 £50,000 

Strengthening London's 
voluntary sector 2 0 2 £194,000 £0 £194,000 

Arts apprenticeships 1 1 2 £4,000 £4,000 £8,000 

Partnership programme: 
hardship funds 2 0 2 £800,000 £0 £800,000 

London youth quality 
mark 1 0 1 £300,000 £0 £300,000 

Eco-audits 1 3 4 £1,500 £4,750 £6,250 

Strategic initiatives 4 6 10 £649,200 £1,198,000 £1,847,200 

Exceptional grants 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Grand total 14 19 33 £2,069,976 £2,227,540 £4,297,516 

 
Applications received 
 
4.1 Chart 3 shows applications received by month and the action taken (excluding 

strategic initiatives). Please note that applications for decision at today’s 
meeting are still classified as ‘pending’.  You will notice that there was a large 
peak in applications in July.  This was when your Working with Londoners 
grants programmes closed to new applications and the peak reflects a rush to 
submit applications before the closure.  If all the applications at today’s 
meeting are approved 2 applications from your Working with Londoners 
programmes will remain pending.  Your officers hope to take these remaining 
applications to your April meeting. 

 
4.2 Your Investing in Londoners applications launched in September 2013.  

Application numbers are now growing steadily, with 43 applications received 
in February before the month had closed.   Officers will continue to monitor 
the level of applications received, though it is worth noting that February in 
2013 also saw a peak in applications which may reflect organisations aiming 
to submit applications before the start of a new financial year 

Page 59



 
 
Today’s applications 
 
5.1 27 applications will be dealt with at today’s meeting.  Table 4 notes the type of 

action required. Full details of each of these applications are shown in 
separate sections later on in your papers. 
 

Table 4: Action to be taken on applications today 

 

Action to be taken  No. 

Working 
with 

Londoners 
Investing in 
Londoners 

Applications recommended for grant 16 3 13 

Funding approved by delegated authority <£5k (to note)  4 0 4 

Funding approved by delegated authority <£25k (to note)  2 0 2 

Applications recommended for rejection 4 0 4 

Withdrawn applications (to note) 1 0 1 

Applications lapsed (to note) 0 0 0 

        

Total applications 27 3 24 

 
Jemma Grieve Combes 
Grants Officer 
 
T: 020 7332 3174 
E: jemma.grievecombes@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2012 2013 2014

Grand Total 32 34 45 26 26 34 38 67 1 2 13 23 30 34 43

Pending 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 1 2 12 28 32 43

Declined 17 19 30 13 13 19 26 41 0 1 8 9 1 1 0

Approved 14 15 15 13 13 15 12 22 1 0 3 2 1 1 0

32
34

45

26 26

34
38

67

1 2

13

23

30
34

43

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Chart 3: Applications received by month and 

action taken

Pending

Declined

Approved

Page 60



 The City Bridge Trust 
 Working with Londoners 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 Bridging Communities 

 a) 11992 Wandsworth Community £111,272 £109,120 

 Empowerment Network 

 Total Bridging Communities £111,272 £109,120 

 

 Strengthening the Third Sector 

 b) 11936 Community Development Finance £133,380 £133,400 

 Association (CDFA) 

 c) 11987 Council of Somali Organisations £100,000 £100,000 

 (CSO) 

 Total Strengthening the Third Sector £233,380 £233,400 

 

 Grand Totals £344,652 £342,520 

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 The City Bridge Trust 
 Investing in Londoners 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 Improving London's Environment 

 d) 12123 Epping Forest Charitable Trust £1,497,000 £388,000 

 Total Improving London's Environment £1,497,000 £388,000 

 

 Making London More Inclusive 

 e) 12056 SHARE Community £129,282 £130,000 

 Total Making London More Inclusive £129,282 £130,000 

 

 Making London Safer 

 f) 12046 Bede House Association £87,365 £88,000 

 Total Making London Safer £87,365 £88,000 

 

 Reducing Poverty 

 g) 12109 Bexley Citizens Advice Bureaux £210,000 £101,440 

 Ltd 

 h) 12132 Centre For Armenian Information £60,000 £90,000 

 & Advice 

 i) 12036 Zacchaeus 2000 Trust £149,849 £149,850 

 Total Reducing Poverty £419,849 £341,290 

 

 Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders 

 j) 12018 Changing Paths Charitable Trust £50,000 £50,000 
 Limited 

 Total Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders £50,000 £50,000 

 

 Strategic Initiatives 

 k) 12212 Research on Access to the Arts £40,000 £40,000 

   for People with Learning Disabilities 

 l) 12214 City Philanthropy £222,000 £222,000 

 m) 12215 London Youth Inclusion Project £216,000 £216,000 

 n) 12216 Media Trust, London 360 £240,000 £240,000 

 o) 12217 nef research on the new austerity £30,000 £30,000 

    

Page 63



 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 p) 12218 London Legal Support Trust £450,000 £450,000 

 Total Strategic Initiatives £1,198,000 £1,198,000 

 

 Grand Totals £3,381,496 £2,195,290 

Page 64



Agenda Item 7a

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7b

Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7c

Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7d

Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Agenda Item 7e

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Agenda Item 7f

Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7g

Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Agenda Item 7h

Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7i

Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7j

Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 13/03/2014 

Subject: Strategic Initiative – Research on Access to 
the Arts for People with Learning Disabilities 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This report requests funding to commission scoping research to determine the 
current status of access for people with learning disabilities to museums, galleries 
and performing arts in London and to determine strategies for improvement. 
 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

Approve a sum of £40,000 from your allocation for Strategic Initiatives to 
commission Lemos&Crane to undertake research into the scope for 
people with learning disabilities to access the Arts in London. 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 

1. The Trust has been a regular and significant supporter of access to services 
 for disabled Londoners since it commenced its grant-making in September 
 1995. Since then, you have awarded several millions of pounds to projects 
 across and crossing London to enable disabled people to live more 
 independently and to have the opportunities that many of us take for granted. 
 
2. You have had a focus on disability and access issues in every major funding 
 programme since your inception. In 2007 you published “Opening Doors 
 Across London” – an examination of the impact of your support for better 
 building access and guidance for those considering such improvements and 
 which upheld the view that your support for better access to buildings has had 
 a significant and far-reaching impact on service provision and on policy.  
 
3. Your current programmes – Investing in Londoners – continue the 
 commitment to access to buildings and services with a particular focus on 
 ensuring that disabled Londoners can take part in arts and sport. Other 
 programme strands incorporate support to enable people to live more 
 independently and to address, for example, some of the consequences of 
 poor mental health. 
 
Current Position 
 

4. Whilst much has been achieved in the past 15-20 years to make London a 
 more accessible city (driven, also, by legislation such as the Disability 

Agenda Item 7k

Page 181



 Discrimination Act 1995 and subsequent amendments and latterly the 
 Equality Act 2010) much of the emphasis – and benefit – has been on 
 addressing the needs of people with physical disabilities. Those with learning 
 disabilities have not fared as well. 
 
5. The social lives of adults with learning disabilities too often revolve mostly 
 around day centres, pubs, cafes and sitting at home watching television or on 
 the internet. Access to more meaningful social activity - including sports clubs, 
 the arts, museums and galleries – is an essential component in building 
 resilience and protective and empowering social networks. 
 
6. Despite longstanding commitments to access, participation, learning and 
 diversity, the major museums, galleries and arts venues are not required by 
 funders or policy makers to promote access for people with learning 
 disabilities to the same degree they might be for those with physical 
 disabilities. The websites of most major venues are explicit about their support 
 for physically disabled people to enter and enjoy their buildings and services 
 but are mute by comparison on their support for learning-disabled people, 
 especially adults. 
 
7. This is not to say, of course, that nothing is happening. There have been, and 
 are, some very good initiatives though many of these are event-type (eg 
 festivals) or short term projects. 
 
8. In short, progress on improving access for people with learning disabilities is 
 at best small scale, limited, patchy and not sustained. The impact, therefore, 
 is minimal. There is no established body of good practice for improving 
 access in performing arts venues and, particularly, in galleries or museums 
 (60% of which are in London). As well as there being a big gap in policy and 
 practice, there is also very little research. 
 

Proposal 

9. Your officers convened a breakfast seminar in December 2013 attended by 
 representatives from the British Museum, the V&A, the Barbican, and the 
 London International Festival of Theatre. Other funders were also 
 represented, including Esmee Fairbairn Foundation and the Rayne 
 Foundation, whilst from the disability arts world came Shape Arts, Heart n 
 Soul and Magpie Dance. All agreed that much more needed to be done to 
 improve access for adults with learning disabilities but, foremost, was the 
 need to determine the current picture, through research. 
 
10. Since the breakfast seminar initial discussions with the Heritage Lottery Fund 
 (HLF) confirmed that the picture was “patchy at best”. Staff at HLF are keen to 
 be involved in any research undertaken. 
 
11. It is proposed to commission a scoping study to understand the extent and 
 nature of activities and approaches to improving access to the arts, galleries 
 and museums for people with learning disabilities; and to identify gaps and 
 make recommendations for good practice as well as policy. The key 
 objectives would be: 

Page 182



 

o To review the policy and practice of performing arts venues, galleries 
and museums in London in relation to adults with learning disabilities 

o To identify activities and projects currently taking place to improve 
access 

o To identify activities and projects being undertaken in adult social care 
or in supported housing to improve access to such activities 

o To scope a larger programme of work with venues to develop and 
disseminate models of good practice 

o To make recommendations for funders and venues on improving 
access for adults with learning disabilities 

o To present and discuss the findings at a seminar for funders and 
service providers 

 
12. Given the nature of the subject and the constituency it is proposed to 
 commission Lemos&Crane (sic) to undertake this research. They have 
 delivered very effective and valuable research for you on previous occasions, 
 including that which instigated your Fear & Fashion programme and, more 
 recently, on the research leading to your highly regarded publication The Arts 
 Case – Why the Arts make a difference. They currently operate your Growing 
 Localities Awards scheme which, in this second year, has seen an increased 
 profile and attracted a greater number of applications than last year. They 
 also bring to the table excellent contacts and credibility within the Arts world 
 (Gerard Lemos CMG is currently Vice-President of the British Board of Film 
 Classification and was previously Deputy Chairman, then Chairman, of the 
 British Council) whilst having practical knowledge of the Trust’s work and its 
 position within the City Corporation. 
 
Costs 
 

13. Lemos&Crane have provided detailed costings for undertaking the scoping 
 and research and which amount to £40,000 (ex VAT). These costs include the 
 writing of the final paper (including its design and web enabling); its 
 dissemination and promotion online; and on the organisation and running of a 
 seminar to take forward any recommendations. The costs, calculated on daily 
 rates of researchers and senior personnel involved, are reasonable. 
 

Conclusion 

14. Whilst access to goods and services for people with physical disabilities has 
 greatly improved in the past 20 years – largely through a combination of stick 
 (legislation) and carrot (greater understanding and awareness) – the same 
 cannot be said for people with learning difficulties. By focusing on improving 
 access to the arts, (particularly to museums, galleries and theatres) your Trust 
 can play a significant and timely role in enabling learning-disabled adults to 
 enjoy the freedom and choices which many of us take for granted. The scope 
 to mobilise other funders to use their influence to instigate change in this area 
 is also considerable. 

 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186   E: Ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 183



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust Committee  

 

13th March 2014 

Subject:  

Strategic Initiatives:  City Philanthropy 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This paper proposes that you build on the success of your City Philanthropy – a 
wealth of opportunity initiative by increasing its capacity, until December 2015: 

• to increase the number of young City professionals engaged in 
philanthropy earlier in their careers, and 

• to promote London as a global centre of philanthropy. 

 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Approve the sum of £222,000 to engage the Association of Charitable 
Foundations to expand your City Philanthropy a wealth of opportunity 
initiative until December 2015 to be costed against your budget for 
Strategic Initiatives 2013/14. 

 

 
Main Report 

 

1.0 Background 

1.1 At your meeting in September 2012, you received a paper setting out the City 
of London Corporation’s Strategy on Philanthropy, as discussed at the 
Resource Allocation Sub-Committee Away Day in July 2012.  The Strategy 
comprises philanthropic activities which you have been funding since 
September 2010. 

 1.2 The concept for City Philanthropy – a wealth of opportunity originated from 
research that was funded by the Policy and Resources Committee in 2008 
when Policy Exchange was commissioned to examine how a culture of 
philanthropy could be further developed within the financial services industry.  
Its resulting report, Give and Let Give – Building a culture of philanthropy in 
the financial services industry concluded that a neutral body should drive 
forward a web-based platform for high net worth individuals about 
philanthropy and that this body should lead a campaign to increase 
philanthropic activity.  Further development of this recommendation stalled as 
a result of the financial crisis that hit the banking industry.  However, by 
September 2010, the advent of recovery within key areas of the financial 
services industry, combined with austerity and the comprehensive spending 

Agenda Item 7l

Page 185



review, meant that the time was right to re-visit those findings.  This resulted 
in you funding the Association of Charitable Foundations to establish the City 
Philanthropy – a Wealth of Opportunity initiative. 

1.3 In November 2012, you approved funds to support these various activities as 
a strategic initiative to be brought together under the banner of City 
Philanthropy – a wealth of opportunity.  This included the sum of £160,000 
over 3 years to pay for the cost of your City Philanthropy Director, Cheryl 
Chapman, for 3 days a week to manage the various projects funded under the 
banner; as well as the development of the City Philanthropy website; and the 
continued mapping and ‘joining up of philanthropic activity in the City.  The 
grant is being hosted and managed by the Association of Charitable 
Foundations. 

 
2.0 City Philanthropy – a wealth of opportunity:  achievements since 

January 2013 

2.1 At your January 2014 meeting, you received a presentation from Cheryl 
Chapman, updating you on the achievements of City Philanthropy – a wealth 
of opportunity.  Much has been achieved so far and it has fast become clear 
that there is a real appetite for philanthropy amongst young City professionals.  
Additional resources would provide more capacity to harness and build on this 
enthusiasm and to promote London as a global centre for philanthropy. 

2.2 City Philanthropy Website 
 The website is an essential platform for promoting philanthropy in the City.  It 

has received more than 8,000 visitors from over 10 countries (although most 
are from the UK).  65% are under the age of 44 and it has just over 1,100 
subscribers for the free bulletin. 

2.3 City Funding Network 
 This involves around 65 young professionals and it has raised over £80,000 

for 9 charities over 3 events (you are funding it to run 2 events a year).  At the 
last event held early in December 2013, 41 of the attendees were newcomers 
and 38 were new donors.  

2.4 Young Philanthropy 
 Five syndicates have completed their course, having invested approximately 

£30,000 in five charities as well as the giving of time and skills by the young 
professionals concerned.  23 syndicates are currently running, involving 345 
young professionals who will invest £138,000 over the coming 12 months in a 
wide range of projects.  24 more syndicates are due to launch in the next 6 
months which will engage an additional 360 young professionals and invest a 
further £148,000.  Proposals to build on and expand this work will be brought 
to your April Committee meeting. 

2.5 City Philanthropy Exhibition 
 You may recall that the exhibition, curated by the Museum of London, was 

launched at Charterhouse on 29th October 2013.  It was a great success, 
attracting higher than anticipated visitor numbers and receiving widespread 
media attention. 

 

Page 186



2.6 Beacon Awards for City Philanthropy 
 The Beacon Awards for City Philanthropy opened for nominations in October 

2012, with a total of 93 nominations being received across all the categories 
(including the City Philanthropy category).   The former Chief Grants Officer 
was a member of the judging committee and the late Lord Mayor was a 
member of the Board of Judges which made the Judges Special Award.  The 
prestigious awards ceremony took place at Mansion House in February 2013, 
hosted by the late Lord Mayor.  The winners of the Beacon Award for City 
Philanthropy were Harvey McGrath, John Stone and the eight founders of 
Young Philanthropy.  Proposals to fund the Beacon Awards 2014-16 will be 
brought to your April Committee meeting. 

2.7 Press & Media Coverage 
 Cheryl Chapman has worked closely with the media agency, Champollion, 

during the year.  Several press articles published during the year, including in-
depth interviews with the Lord Mayor, have referenced City Philanthropy, City 
Bridge Trust and its trustee, the City of London Corporation.  The major focus 
of media work was, of course, the City Philanthropy Exhibition.  In total, there 
were 4 national press articles, 1 international press piece, 4 magazine 
articles, 2 TV news items and 1 radio broadcast.  In addition, there was 
considerable social media activity, in particular through Twitter and bloggers. 

 
3.0 Building Capacity to Achieve Strategic Aims 

3.1 Extending the Director of City Philanthropy’s hours 
 Currently, Cheryl Chapman is funded to work for three days per week as 

Director of City Philanthropy.  However, in practice she puts in more hours 
than this, for example, in the run up to, and during, the City Philanthropy 
Exhibition.  In order to increase her capacity to develop the strategic direction 
of City Philanthropy and to continue to manage the various activities taking 
place under its banner, it is proposed that her hours are increased from three 
days to four days per week.  She would continue to be employed by the 
Association of Charitable Foundations. 

3.2 City Philanthropy Website 
 Lack of capacity means that the website has not been updated as regularly as 

it could have been.  The website has also evolved to a point where it needs to 
be refreshed to make it a hub for all things philanthropic in the City.  To this 
end, it is proposed to engage a full-time website writer/editor who would be 
able to produce content for the website and produce e-bulletins etc.   This 
would free up the time of Cheryl Chapman to further develop City 
Philanthropy at the higher, strategic level.  Additionally, it is proposed to 
engage an apprentice who would be involved in general office duties and 
helping with events and the touring City Philanthropy Exhibition (see 
paragraph 3.3).   

3.3 Measuring Impact 
 Now that City Philanthropy is established as a ‘brand’ it is essential that it is 

able to measure its impact, for example, in terms of changing attitudes 
amongst young City professionals towards, giving, how much people give and 
to which causes.  It is proposed to commission an agency such as the 
Coalition for Efficiency (whose mission is to work with existing charities to find 

Page 187



ways of running themselves more efficiently and effectively) to identify impact 
measurements for City Philanthropy and a framework for evaluating its 
success. 

3.4 Research 
 It is proposed to commission a piece of research to help better understand 

philanthropy and its relationship with the City, working closely with the Cass 
Centre for Charity Effectiveness or another body.  Now that City Philanthropy 
has gained a head of steam and given that such an appetite for philanthropy 
has emerged amongst young City professionals, it would seem timely to 
update the Give and Let Give research that was outlined in paragraph 1.2. 

3.5 City Philanthropy Exhibition on tour 
 Following the success of the City Philanthropy Exhibition during November 

2013, there is a need to promote and engage organisations that are potential 
hosts for the exhibition at events around the City.  To date, there has been 
some interest from the Livery Companies, Guildhall, Guildhall Library and 
Cass Business School.  The exhibition content might also be shown on 
hoardings in the City, particularly City of London building sites.  This would 
necessitate re-formatting the exhibition’s art work.  

3.6 Philanthropy Events 
 As part of the City Philanthropy Exhibition programme, City Philanthropy 

organised 6 events which were well attended, attracted more than 750 people 
and received excellent feedback.  It is proposed to hold a one-day 
philanthropy conference, probably at Guildhall on ‘Why Rich People Give’.  In 
addition, City Philanthropy has been approached by the Charities Aid 
Foundation to host the first ever Sunday Times Giving List in May 2013.  It is 
proposed to hold this event at Guildhall.  

3.7 Go Pro Bono 
 You may recall that you are funding the Coalition for Efficiency to develop a 

website that brings together the various web-based volunteering intermediary 
bodies into a single platform.  This is in order that users (such as City 
professionals with time and expertise to offer) can easily find and distinguish 
between the types of volunteering services being offered, the types of 
organisation that can be supported, the type of volunteering opportunities, 
which ones offer paid-for services, which are free etc.  This is due to launch in 
April 2014 and a modest budget is sought as part of this proposal for PR 
support (such as through your media agency, Champollion, for example) 
during the launch. 

3.8 Lord Mayor’s Appeal 
 Cheryl Chapman has worked closely with the Lord Mayor’s Appeal (itself the 

subject of a Strategic Initiative in your papers today) and during 2014 will input 
into the Diversity in Giving event in May and the City Giving Event in July. 

3.9 Advisory Capacity 
 It is proposed that City Philanthropy has input of an advisory capacity at a 

high level by someone with good City connections at board level who can 
generate interest in City Philanthropy at this level and who understands the 
operating environment of the City of London Corporation.  It is envisaged that 
the person would be engaged for one day per month to offer advice on the 

Page 188



strategic direction of City Philanthropy and to provide support to Cheryl 
Chapman as the Director of City Philanthropy. 

3.10 Inspired 50 
 City Philanthropy has been approached by the City Philanthropy Club (a 

members-only club of City professionals who aim to channel their giving in a 
way that is strategic, effective and sustainable, through exclusive social and 
networking events) to help them bring together a network of 50 City people 
involved in creating their own philanthropic projects.  This would be an 
excellent way to build a stock of inspirational case-studies for dissemination 
through the City Philanthropy website and possibly through a film and/or 
publication. 

3.11 Educational Resources 
 There remains a dearth of education materials and resources around 

philanthropy.  It is proposed to produce a guide on philanthropy, in 
consultation with Cass Centre for Charity Effectiveness (located in the Cass 
Business School) and/or other partners.  Cass is likely to be interested in such 
resources for its charity management post-graduate courses, in particular, its 
post-graduate courses in Grant-making, Philanthropy and Social Investment. 

 
4.0 Cost 

4.1 The cost of these proposals is broken down in the table below. 

 2014 2015 TOTAL 

Director of City Philanthropy 
additional salary costs 

13,000 17,000 30,000 

Website & Copy writing additional 
costs 

46,100 57,500 103,600 

Philanthropy Events 25,000  25,000 

Re-formatting of City Philanthropy 
Exhibition panels 

5,000  5,000 

Go Pro Bono PR 1,000  1,000 

Impact Measurement 6,000  6,000 

Advisor to City Philanthropy 3,600 4,800 8,400 

Inspired 50 8,000  8,000 

Educational Materials 5,000 10,000 15,000 

Research 20,000  20,000 

Total 132,700 89,300 222,000 

  

  

Page 189



 

5.0 Financial Observations 

5.1 The Association of Charitable Foundation’s audited accounts for the year 
ended 31st December 2012 show a surplus of £93,835 (9.4% of turnover), 
comprising £71,202 on restricted funds and £22,633 on unrestricted funds. 

5.2 The reserves policy states that the organisation aims to hold  free unrestricted 
reserves sufficient  to cover approximately three to six months’ worth of 
unrestricted expenditure, which is equivalent to between £172,758 and 
£345,516 based on current budgeted expenditure.  As at 31st December 2012, 
free unrestricted reserves stood at £219,427, which is equivalent to 3.8 
months’ worth of current budgeted expenditure.  

5.3 Draft accounts for the year ended 31st December 2013 show a deficit of 
£39,858 (4.7% of turnover), comprising a deficit of £49,690 on restricted funds 
partially offset by a surplus of £9,832 on unrestricted funds. The deficit was 
due to expenditure on restricted funds received in the previous year. 

5.4 The budget for the current year to 31st December 2014 projects a deficit of 
£35,077, comprising a deficit of £50,025 on restricted funds partially offset by 
a surplus of £14,947 on unrestricted funds. Total projected income amounts to 
£898,500, of which £192,520 (21%) had been confirmed at the start of the 
year, with £705,980 (79%) to be earned from trading activities, membership 
subscriptions and events during the year. 

 
6.0 Conclusion 

6.1 City Philanthropy – a wealth of opportunity is now established as a brand and 
it is timely, therefore, to build on this success, develop new areas of 
philanthropic activity in the City, with a particular emphasis on young City 
professinals and promote London as a global centre for philanthropy.   

6.2 Whilst much has been achieved to date, with additional resources, more could 
be achieved in meeting its strategic aims. It is playing a valuable role in 
generating additional ‘new’ money at a time when public funding sources are 
dwindling and the need for charitable services rising 

 
 
 
Jenny Field 
Deputy Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3715 
E: jenny.field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 190



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 13/03/2014 

Subject: Strategic Initiative – London Youth Inclusion 
Project 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This report requests funding over three years to enable London Youth to support its 
membership of 400+ youth clubs to better accommodate and provide for young 
disabled people. 
 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

Approve a grant to London Youth for £216,000 over three years (£68,000; 
£112,000; £36,000) from your Strategic Initiatives allocation for the revenue 
costs of delivering the Inclusion project. 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 

1. London Youth (LY) is the working name of the charity that is The Federation 
 of London Youth Clubs. It grew out of the Ragged Schools’ movement of the 
 nineteenth century and, today, is the principal membership body for youth 
 organisations across Greater London (currently 400+ in number). 
 
2. As an organisation it has history and experience in abundance and has a long 
 and supportive association with the City and, in particular, with the Livery 
 Companies. HRH The Duke of Edinburgh has been its (very active) Patron 
 since 1946 – since before he married, in fact. 
 
3. Your Committee has been a regular supporter of London Youth’s work over 
 the years, valuing it as a very important and capable instigator of positive 
 change and support for young people. You are currently funding it £55,000 for 
 the third and final year of a project (Urban Nature) supporting young people to 
 become local environmental champions. This grant is due to end in  March 
 2014. All grants previously awarded have been delivered to a high standard. 
 
4. London Youth is also your partner agency in your current programme 
 supporting youth organisations to achieve an accredited Quality Mark (the 
 London Youth Quality Mark Awards). 
 

Agenda Item 7m

Page 191



Current Position 

5. London Youth supports a network of over 400 diverse community youth 
 organisations where young people choose to go. With unique reach to over 
 75,000 young Londoners it delivers programmes with and through this 
 network in every London Borough and at its two residential learning centres 
 outside the capital. Its mission is to support and challenge young people to be 
 the best they can be. 
 
6. Whilst aiming to work with all young people LY places a particular emphasis 
 on those who wouldn’t otherwise have access to the opportunities on offer. 
 This proposal (called Inclusion) is targeted at establishing and delivering a 
 clear offer to young  people with disabilities, with the aim of maximising their 
 inclusion in all aspects of LY’s work. 
 
7. Recognising that every young disabled Londoner has individual needs, LY 
 wants to be able to offer all of them more opportunity to build their confidence, 
 character and skills by accessing a member club and/or LY’s own 
 programmes. It would do this through creating change in 4 key strands of its 
 work: 
 

a. Membership development. Supporting member organisations, through 
a dedicated learning network, to share learning and best practice on 
working with disabled young people and on integrated work. 
Knowledge and expertise would also become embedded within the 
training and quality assurance programmes offered to members. 

b. Opportunity. Last year London Youth worked directly with 22,000 
young people through its own sport, youth action and employability 
schemes. Inclusion will improve access to these programmes for 
groups of disabled young people. 

c. Voice. This will aim to ensure that disabled young people will continue 
to be represented on Dare London (LY’s youth advisory board) and on 
its Trustee Board. 

d. Best we can be. This involves establishing and training 14 existing LY 
staff as Inclusion Champions. The Champions, working across all of 
the organisation’s programme areas, will have a two-year mandate to 
ensure LY delivers on these strategic goals and that young Londoners 
with disabilities have the opportunity to boost their confidence, 
character and skills. 

 
8. This 3-year project has come directly from London Youth’s inclusion strategy 
 which, itself, arose from a major review of its work with young disabled 
 Londoners in the first half of 2013. Without additional funding as 
 recommended this important work would not happen to the scale required. 
 
9. The All Party Parliamentary Group for Young Disabled People provided a 
 thorough and up-to-date audit of the practical issues faced by disabled young 
 people in its report published at the end of 2012 “Removing barriers, 
 promoting independence”. In tandem with difficulties of transport, access and 
 similar issues there are also more emotive forces at play, with disabled young 

Page 192



 people twice as likely to be bullied and four times less likely to find work then 
 their non-disabled peers. 

 
Timeframe and Costs 

10. This three year project would commence in April 2014. Annual costings 
 against programme strands (as identified in 2.3) are shown, as requested, in 
 Table 1 below: 
 

Table 1 
 

  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total  
    
Membership Development     
1.   Inclusion network  £7,250 £14,500 £14,500 £36,250 
Opportunity     
2.   Sports development  £15,000 £15,000 

 
£30,000 

3.   Centre Inclusion Officers 
 

£16,283 £16,772 £33,055 
4.   Accessibility improvements 

 
£35,000 

 
£35,000 

Voice     
5.   Communications improvements 

 
£20,000 

 
£20,000 

Best we can be     
6.   Staff training  £5,000 £5,000 £5,000 £15,000 
7a. Inclusion champions  £32,776 £33,639 

 
£66,415 

7b. Inclusion champions budget £7,500 £7,500 
 

£15,000 
    

  £67,526 £146,922 £36,272 £250,720 

 
 
11. Members will note the sum of £35,000 requested in year 2 for accessibility 
 improvements to some of the residential/training centres. As it is unusual for 
 you to make grants for both revenue and capital at the same time the 
 organisation has confirmed that it will meet these costs from elsewhere. This 
 sum is not included, therefore, in the overall sum recommended. 
 
12. The Centre Inclusion Officers (on 6-month secondments) will operate at the 
 two LY residential/activity centres – Hindleap in year 1 and Woodrow in year 
 2 – whilst the Inclusion Champions’ costs are calculated on the equivalent 
 hourly rates for existing staff (eg Senior Instructors, Youth Involvement 
 Officers). 

 
Financial observations 
13. Audited accounts for the year ended 31st August 2012 show an operating 
 deficit of £102,471 (2.4% of turnover), comprising a deficit of £131,088 on 
 unrestricted funds, partially offset by surpluses of £51,277 on endowment 
 funds and £28,617 on restricted funds. An unrealised gain on investments of 
 £40,631 and a realised gain on disposal of investments of £10,646 resulted in 
 an overall deficit of £51,194. 
 

14. The charity’s reserves policy does not give a target figure but states that 
 “Trustees seek to retain a prudent level of reserves free from unrestricted 

Page 193



 income.” The policy states “Trustees believe unrestricted reserves stand at a 
 satisfactory level in light of the adopted policy but will aim to increase 
 unrestricted reserves where possible to improve the ratio to annual planned 
 expenditure”. At 31st August 2012 free unrestricted reserves stood at 
 £711,299, which equates to 1 months’ worth of 2013/14 expenditure.   
 

15. Draft accounts for the year ended 31st August 2013 show an operating deficit 
 of £381,063 (7.8% of turnover), comprising a deficit of £397,530 on 
 unrestricted funds partially offset by a surplus of £16,467 on restricted funds. 
 An unrealised gain on investments of £91,631 resulted in an overall deficit of 
 £289,432.  At 31st August 2013 free unrestricted reserves are expected to be 
 £587,299, which equates to 26 days’ worth of 2013/14 expenditure. 
 

16. The latest forecast for the current year to 31st August 2014 shows an overall 
 surplus of £150,380 (1.8% of turnover), comprising a deficit of £17,282 on 
 unrestricted funds offset by a surplus of £167,662 on restricted funds. Total 
 forecast income amounts to £8,346,124, of which £5,494,833 (65.8%) has 
 been confirmed.  This latest unrestricted deficit should see free reserves fall to 
 £570,017, equating to 25 days’ worth of expenditure. 
 

Conclusion 

17. As well as being the lead membership body for London’s youth organisations 
 London Youth has itself a full and important range of direct services and 
 activities. It recognises and upholds its responsibility at the forefront of 
 representing, developing and advocating for the capital’s young people. It 
 knows it has a duty to lead by example and to encourage and embed good 
 practice. It is appropriate, therefore, that it should now take a lead in 
 developing youth services for young people with disabilities – hence the 
 Inclusion project. 
 

18. The success of Inclusion will mean that the member clubs, centres and 
 programmes will be a positive experience in the life of young disabled 
 Londoners. The organisation has a robust outcomes and evaluation approach 
 developed with support from the Young Foundation and based on their 
 Outcomes Framework. 
 

19. A grant to London Youth of £216,000 over three years (£68,000; £112,000; 
 £36,000) for the Inclusion project  is recommended to enable a significant and 
 lasting impact on the opportunities for young Londoners with disabilities to be 
 supported and challenged to become the best they can be. 

 
 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3186 
E: Ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 194



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust Committee (for decision) 

 

13th March 2014 

Subject:  

Strategic Initiatives:  The Media Trust 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This paper proposes that you build on the success of the Media Trust’s 
London360 initiative, providing training and mentoring for young Londoners in 
community journalism with funding over three years. 

 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Approve the sum of £240,000 over three years (3 x £80,000) to enable 
the Media Trust to further develop its London360 initiative to be costed 
against your budget for Strategic Initiatives 2013/14. 

 

 
Main Report 

 
1.0 Background 

1.1 The Media Trust is the UK’s leading communications charity which trains and 
works with other charities to enhance their communications, enabling 
communities to find their voice and make themselves heard. 

1.2 It also provides multi-media channels, including the Community Channel, 
which enable community groups large and small to get their message across. 

1.3 The Trust has worked in partnership with the Media Trust on several 
occasions.  For example, it provided bespoke communications training to a 
sample of organisations funded on your first Small Grants Programme.  The 
organisations selected were charities that would not usually have access to 
such quality training.  This included learning how to write press releases, 
undertake local radio interviews, design posters and produce quality 
promotional videos.  This was a two-year programme which culminated in a 
half-day learning event and awards ceremony showcasing the five 
organisations that had most improved their communications as a result of the 
training. 

1.4 More recently, you have asked the Media Trust to work with cohorts of your 
Working with Londoners grantees to produce videos about themselves in an 
initiative called “Telling Your Stories”.  The most recent cohort of films were 
made with some of your ‘Growing Localities’ grantees and as well as videos 
for each of the participating organisations, the Media Trust produced a full-

Agenda Item 7n

Page 195



length film featuring your Growing Localities grantees which was broadcast on 
the Community Channel on 26th and 28th May 2013.  Blue Peter presenter, 
Chris Collins, appeared in and narrated the film. 
 

2.0 About London360 

2.1 London360 provides young Londoners with training and mentoring in 
community journalism.  It gives them a voice and enables them to tell and 
disseminate the stories of London’s communities via flagship media 
partnerships. 

2.2 You helped kick-start this initiative with two one-year grants (2 x £142,000) for 
work taking place during 2011/12 and 2012/13. 

2.3 To date, over 400 young people have been trained, and over 2,000 stories 
produced and distributed.  A new broadcast platform on London Live, 
promoted by the Evening Standard, has been secured for year 4 of its 
inception.  A Strategic Initiative grant from the Trust would provide the match-
funding needed to draw down £100,000 secured from London Live, the 
Golden Bottle Trust and Tennyson Insurance. 

2.4 The Media Trust aims to encourage young people from all backgrounds to 
participate in the project, enabling them to share community and cultural 
experiences.  It also recruits young people through partner agencies such as 
Fitzrovia Youth in Action, Who Cares Trust (both of which you currently fund) 
and Black Youth Achievements.  Of the young people worked in the last year, 
41% described themselves as NEET (not in education, employment or 
training) and 91% were from BME communities.  

 
3.0 Impact to date 

3.1 The 400 young participants have developed the confidence, life skills, media 
skills and employability whilst telling community stories that have reached 
audiences of millions in London (BBC Radio London, Evening Standard, The 
Voice, LBC, Time Out and others) and across the UK via the Community 
Channel. 

3.2 It is a credit to the success of this initiative that London Live and the Evening 
Standard want to provide a broadcast platform and work in partnership with 
the Media Trust. 

3.3 Many of London360’s reporters are now working across London’s media 
including with ITV news, London Live, BBC Sport, BBC Radio1, MTV, ITV, 
Eastenders Press Office, Shine Media, Jewish Chronicle, Gospel Radio, 
Chinese Media, Mobo Awards and Sunrise Radio whilst others have set up 
their own freelance media production businesses.  Training from the Media 
Trust gives the young reporters a unique perspective on the issues that affect 
London’s more disadvantaged and isolated communities. 

 
4.0 Plans for the next phase from April 2014 

4.1 From April 2014, London360 will have a weekly broadcast magazine slot on 
London Live, the new London-wide channel launching on Freeview 8, as well 
as on the Community Channel’s UK-wide television platform. This will reach 
audiences of over 5.5 million through broadcasts of 24 hours on Sky and 

Page 196



Virgin, 6 hours on Freeview, alongside a unique 24 hour window on BBC 
iPlayer.  The Evening Standard will promote the London360 programmes, the 
most powerful of which will continue to be distributed through a range of wider 
media, including the Media Trust’s exclusive partnerships with BBC Radio 
London, The Voice, MTV, Westside Radio and others.  All content is branded 
London360, a brand developed by the young reporters themselves.  

4.2 From June 2014, the Media Trust proposes to engage a further 110 
disadvantaged Londoners across the year as reporters and community 
journalists, training them to report for broadcast TV (London Live and the 
Community Channel), print, radio and online media; and to develop their own 
progression opportunities, including for some, into paid work in London’s 
media. 

4.3 Of these 110, ten will be full-time community reporters, working on five-month 
placements at the Media Trust’s offices reporting on a range of community-
based issues and stories from across the Capital. Of the remaining 100, all 
will receive training, e-training and other resources to enable them to become 
‘community journalists’, acting as the eyes and ears of their neighbourhoods.  
However, 50 of them will also receive a higher level of training from media 
professionals. 

4.4 This approach would be repeated in years 2 and 3 when 2 further cohorts of 
100 young people would be recruited each year. 

4.4 During the second year of your previous funding, the Media Trust began to 
work more closely with the Trust, with the young people partnering some of 
your grant recipients to tell their stories.  For example, London360 featured 
one of your grantees, Contact the Elderly, which works to tackle social 
isolation amongst older people.  This was a very positive experience for all 
concerned and afterwards Contact the Elderly said “We thoroughly enjoyed 
working with the Media Trust to produce a feature on loneliness among older 
people in London and appreciated the opportunity to highlight this growing 
issue, as well as being able to get Contact the Elderly’s message out further 
afield”.  

4.5 If you approve funding today, it is proposed to build on this and provide the 
Media Trust with regular updates on recent grants to enable more media 
coverage for your grantees and recognition of your support for London’s 
communities.  

4.6 Whilst the Media Trust cannot guarantee that its training will lead to 
employment in the industry in today’s difficult economic climate 

  

Page 197



 
5.0 Budget 

5.1 The annual budget for this project is set out in the table below: 

Income £ 

Golden Bottle Trust 15,000 

Tennyson Insurance 45,000 

London Live 40,000 

Total 100,000 

Expenditure  

Executive Producer 44,000 

Project Officer/Youth Outreach 23,000 

Editor (p/t) 17,00 

Online/social media producer (p/t) 13,000 

Volunteer expenses 18,000 

Project running costs, overheads & 
management 

58,750 

Graphics TV/online 6,000 

Total 180,000 

  

Shortfall requested from City Bridge Trust 80,000 

 

6.0 Financial Observations 

6.1 Audited accounts for the year ended 31st March 2013 show a deficit of 
£366,800 (11% of turnover), comprising £305,360 on unrestricted funds and 
£61,440 on restricted funds.  The deficit on restricted funds arose, due to 
expenditure incurred in the year relating to income which was received in the 
previous financial year. The charity advises that the deficit on unrestricted 
funds was due to the trustees’ decision to use up to £350,000 of its 
unrestricted reserves to invest in its fundraising and marketing infrastructure 
in order to help boost its fundraising capacity in the current tough funding 
climate.  In the event, only £300,000 was used for this purpose. 

6.2 The current year forecast to 31 March 2014 shows a deficit of £247,000 (7.3% 
of turnover), comprising  deficits of £223,000 on restricted funds and £24,000 
on unrestricted funds. Total projected income is £3,406,000, all of which has 
been confirmed. 

6.3 The draft budget for 2014/15 projects an overall surplus of £34,000 (0.9% of 
turnover), comprising a surplus of £31,000 on restricted funds and a surplus 
of £3,000 on unrestricted funds.  Total projected income amounts to 
£3,955,000, of which £1,776,000 (45%) had been confirmed as at 25 
February 2014.  Grant applications pending amount to £687,000 (17%) and 

Page 198



income of £1,492,000 (38%) is estimated from corporate membership, 
fundraising events and trading income. 

6.4 The reserves policy states that after assessing the potential material financial 
risks that the charity may face that cannot be managed in other ways, Media 
Trust needs to build up unrestricted reserves to £500,000 (equivalent to 1.5 
months’ worth of 2014/15 budgeted expenditure) by March 2016, in order to 
mitigate against those risks.  As at 31st March 2013, free unrestricted reserves 
stood at £406,551, which is equivalent to 1.2 months’ worth of 2014/15 
budgeted expenditure. 

 
7.0 Conclusion 

7.1 The Media Trust is highly respected for the quality of its work and as well as 
providing services for the voluntary sector, it also undertakes commissioned 
external communications work for Government (eg health campaigns) and for 
the private sector (eg on corporate responsibility).  It is backed by and 
receives considerable in-kind support from many of the main TV, digital, film 
and print media organisations. 

7.2 The opportunities it is able to provide the London360 reporters are without 
parallel.  For example, one young man that came through London360 was 
working in low-paid part-time employment working as a security guard.  He 
spent a total of 5 months with London360 producing, editing, presenting,  and 
writing about a wide range of community news stories.  During this time he 
gained the range of skills and the self-confidence to secure full-time paid 
employment with MTV.  As he himself put it “I’m now working with MTV and 
that only came about through London360.  My CV is ¾ of the work I did during 
my time.  They had a look at the footage I had been part of and called me  in 
for an interview.” 

7.3 The proposed work with City Bridge Trust grantees is an opportunity to add 
value to your grant-making by enabling their work and key messages to reach 
new audiences.  It is also an opportunity to promote the work of the Trust 
more widely. 

7.4 Support for London360 for the next three years will enable the Media Trust to 
build on its success to date with the London Live broadcast providing an 
additional and wide-reaching platform through which to tell London’s stories. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jenny Field 
Deputy Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3715 
E: jenny.field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust Committee 

 

13th March 2014 

Subject:  

Strategic Initiatives:  New Economics Foundation (nef) 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This paper proposes that you support the New Economics Foundation (nef1) for 
a further year to enable it to use the findings of its Surviving Austerity and to 
disseminate the ways in which local communities in London are finding 
practical solutions to the new austerity. 

 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Approve the sum of £30,000 to enable the New Economic Foundation to 
disseminate the findings of its Surviving Austerity research across local 
authorities in London to be costed against your budget for Strategic 
Initiatives 2013/14. 

 

 
Main Report 

 
1.0 Background 

1.1 New Economics Foundation (nef) is the UK’s leading think tank promoting 
social, economic and environmental justice.  It has three main ‘head’s to its 
work, as follows:- 

• Economy, including work in such areas as banking and finance; Social Return 
on Investment; and Macroeconomics. 

• Environment, including work on environmental issues; transport and 
infrastructure; international development. 

• Society, including criminal justice; democracy and participation; and public 
service reform/ 

1.2 In 2011/12, you funded nef, in partnership with Barrow Cadbury Trust and 
LankellyChase Foundation research into how people in two of the most 
economically disadvantaged parts of Birmingham and Haringey, were 
experiencing the effects of the recession, or the ‘new austerity’.   

                                           
1
 nef always uses lower case 

Agenda Item 7o

Page 201



1.3 Its findings, Surviving Austerity, were launched last July 2013 at a conference 
hosted by the Trust, in partnership with Barrow Cadbury Trust, LankellyChase 
Foundation and nef, chaired by the Chief Grants Officer. 

1.4 Entitled “Creative Solutions for Tough Times – practical and local responses 

to poverty and inequality”, the conference was an opportunity to showcase a 

range of creative community approaches to challenging times, including 
London Time Credits, a new model of volunteering, that you are funding Spice 
to develop in London. 

2.0 Findings of the Surviving Austerity Research 

2.1 Using peer research, photojournalism, interviews and workshops with local 
residents, community organisations and local authority officers, the research 
addressed three key questions: 

• How are people experiencing welfare reform and public sector spending 
reductions? 

• What does the Big Society mean for local residents? 

• What can be done at the local level to promote social justice and improve 
people’s well-being? 

2.2 Not surprisingly, the research found that the combination of reduced income 
levels (whether as a result of unemployment, increased cost of living, reduced 
salaries or cuts in benefits); more precarious employment conditions; a 
growing demand for unpaid labour (for example, as reductions in public 
spending mean that more family members are required to look after relatives 
with care needs); and an unravelling safety net, as a result of reductions in 
benefits have resulted in people’s everday insecurity levels have risen 
sharply. 

2.3 Given that the ‘new austerity’ is likely to continue for some considerable time, 
the research asked how people were responding at the local level.  It found 
that local communities were learning to build on their local assets in a number 
of creative and resourceful ways by bulk-buying food for neighbourhoods, for 
example, and by building social networks and more affordable services 
through coproduction and time-banking. 

2.4 It called on commissioners to promote fairness by commissioning for social, 
economic and environmental value and to make co-production a standard 
model for delivering services.  

3.0 Dissemination Plans 

3.1 It is now proposed to consolidate and disseminate this work by identifying 
where and how practical action is being taken to mitigate the effects of 
austerity and promote social justice and to disseminate this in London and 
Birmingham.  The Trust is asked to support the work in London whilst Barrow 
Cadbury Trust is considering funding the work in Birmingham. 

3.2 The project will have three distinct phases.  The first phase will begin a 
mapping exercise of examples of practical action successfully taking place 
which will include the experience and learning of the Fairness Commissions 
with which nef is currently engaged. 

Page 202



3.3 This will be done through desk research and interviews, with experts working 
in local government, grant-making foundations, and the voluntary sector, to 
explore where innovative approaches are being applied and to broker 
contacts with those organisations. 

3.3 A brief report will then document the range of approaches being applied 
across the country, promoting practical resources where available and 
disseminating widely during phases 2 and 3. 

3.4 The second phase will use a series of learning events as a means of 
disseminating the findings of Phase 1.  Your funding would be used for a 
series of such events in London. 

3.5 There would be one large London-wide event to bring together leading 
organisations to share their experiences and to identify solutions for the 
challenges they face.  This would be followed by a series of smaller events 
that would be used as the basis for developing a set of guidance materials for 
others to learn from the examples, to take similar action and to train in self-
evaluation approaches that track progress and assess impact.  nef will 
develop the materials and then have them peer reviewed by organisations 
leading similar initiatives.   

3.6 Finally, nef will provide practical support to interested organisations and local 
authorities to enable practical actions to spread across London and to 
stimulate peer learning. 

3.7 In London, nef would prioritise using learning from projects responding to the 
new austerity that City Bridge Trust is funding, such as Spice’s London Time 
Credits model, the civic engagement work of Paddington Development Trust, 
London Citizens’ CitySafe campaign and the development of the Trussell 
Trust in London.  It would also draw out learning relevant to tackling poverty, 
to reflect your new Investing in Londoners programme supporting work in this 
area.  All this would add value to the work you are already funding and 
provide the Trust with valuable learning.  

3.8 Phase 3 will combine events, online learning opportunities, targeted social 
media work and bespoke support to disseminate the learning and guidance 
materials nationally. 

3.9 This would include the development of peer networks that would promote 
implementation across other parts of the country.  So, for example, other parts 
of the country could learn about practical projects taking place in London 
through online resources.  Social media could support the development of 
practitioners’ networks which could be complemented by site visits and/or 
study days. 

3.10 The research and learning would also be shared with and promoted through 
the Local Government Association, London Councils and local boroughs in 
London.  Several boroughs in London have expressed strong interest in 
finding out more about creative strategies for tacking poverty, following the 
publication of nef’s Surviving Austerity report. 

  

4.0 Cost 

Page 203



4.1 The total cost of this project is £60,000 of which you are requested to 
contribute £30,000 to represent the proportionate benefit to London.  A 
breakdown of the costs is provided in the table below: 

 

Item  Cost 

Phase 1   Desk research, interviewing, survey 7,000 

 Report write-up 7,000 

Phase 2  Series of events 12,000 

 Development of learning materials 10,000 

Phase 3 Developing peer networks 7,500 

 Communications & PR 2,000 

 Travel, room hire, refreshments 9for 
events)  

4,500 

   

Total  60,000 

 

5.0 Financial Observations 

5.1 Audited accounts for the year ended 30th June 2013 show an overall deficit of 
£147,043 (4.7% of turnover) comprising a deficit of £282,167 on restricted 
funds, partially offset by a surplus of £135,124 on unrestricted funds. 

5.2 The charity’s reserves policy is to ensure that each of its programmes has 
confirmed funding or general reserves to meet at least 3 months’ worth of 
operating costs, which is equivalent to £846,500 based on 2013/14 
expenditure.  In addition, it aims to hold a general reserve of £250,000 as a 
further measure of stability for the organisation. The total target holding is 
£1,096,500 which is equivalent to 3.9 months’ worth of 2013/14 expenditure. 

5.3 As at 30th June 2013, free unrestricted reserves stood at £538,506, which is 
equivalent to 1.9 months’ worth of 2013/14 expenditure.   

5.4 The budget for the current year to 30th June 2014 forecasts a surplus of 
£123,000 (3.5% of turnover), comprising a surplus of £337,000 on 
unrestricted funds partially offset by a deficit of £214,000 on restricted funds. 
Total projected income amounts to £3,509,000, of which £2,707,000 (77.1%) 
was confirmed as at 14 February 2014. 

5.5 At 30th June 2014 free unrestricted reserves are anticipated to be £875,506, 
which is equivalent to 3.1 months’ worth of 2013/14 expenditure and 
marginally below the target to hold £1.1m (3.9 months’ worth of expenditure). 

 

6.0 Conclusion 

6.1 This proposal is most timely at a time when increasing numbers of people are 
experiencing financial hardship, accompanied by increased levels of 
insecurity and anxiety.  At the same time, further and deeper public spending 
cuts will take place in 2015. 

Page 204



 
6.2 Against this backdrop, local authority commissioners will face tough decisions 

about services and how to meet health and social care needs.  From the 
interest shown so far by local authorities, including several London boroughs, 
in finding creative solutions to poverty and different models of co-production, 
there is likely to be considerable appetite for this next phase of nef’s practical 
research. 

6.3 Opportunities to share models, for peer learning and networking and to have 
access to resources will bring great benefits to voluntary organisations in 
London.  It will also provide an opportunity for the lessons from work you are 
already funding in response to the current economic climate to be shared and 
disseminated, thereby adding value to your grant-making. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jenny Field 
Deputy Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3715 
E: jenny.field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 13/03/2014 

Subject: Strategic Initiative – London Legal Support 
Trust 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This report requests funding over three years to support the sustainability of 
community, specialist, legal advice service providers in Greater London. 
 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to: 
 

Approve a grant to the London Legal Support Trust of £450,000 over 
three years (3 x £150,000) towards core salary and other costs to 
support the provision of Centres of Excellence in Greater London. 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 

1. The London Legal Support Trust (LLST), a registered charity, was established 
 in 2003 and works to assist voluntary sector law centres and legal advice 
 agencies (including  Citizens Advice Bureaux) in London and the Home 
 Counties by providing them with grant funding alongside other forms of 
 support. 
 
2. Its ability to make grants is entirely dependent on its own fundraising which it 
 achieves from donations and by holding large fundraising events, most 
 notably the London Legal Walk, and then delivering the funds raised to the 
 agencies where they are most needed, through grant rounds. LLST also 
 offers  knowledge and experience of the sector to help the agencies to 
 become more sustainable and to partner them with law firms and chambers 
 who want to help them ensure that the law is fair. 
 
3. LLST is part of a network of seven Legal Support Trusts across England and 
 in Wales working with the Access to Justice Foundation to support pro bono 
 and advice agencies, ensuring funds can be distributed where most needed. 
 
4. The organisation is widely supported by London’s major law firms (all of 
 London’s top 50 firms provide assistance in one form or another) and legal 
 professionals and, in a typical year, will raise in excess of £600,000 from 
 events and activities. It is extremely lean – currently employing just two paid 
 staff (a p/t Chief Executive and his Deputy) and an apprentice and based at 

Agenda Item 7p

Page 207



 the National Pro Bono Centre in Chancery Lane. The organisation of 
 fundraising events, etc, is assisted by an impressive cohort of volunteers. 
 
Current Position 

5. LLST’s underlying principle is that access to justice should be equally 
 available to everyone regardless of their financial situation and, in this, it 
 recognises that advice agencies and Citizens Advice Bureaux work very hard 
 to try to ensure that vulnerable people do have a way of accessing justice 
 through a mixture of Legal Aid (publically-funded work), funding from local 
 authorities, charitable donations, and by using pro bono volunteers. 
 
6.  Using the funds it raises each year, LLST makes grants to community legal 
 advice services as most of them are run on such tight budgets that their 
 administration or core costs are largely unfunded. This places immense strain 
 on these organisations which, in current times, are struggling to stay open as 
 public funding decreases. 
 
7. As well as supporting the principle of equal access to justice LLST recognises 
 the cost-benefit of early intervention, where research (Citizens Advice, July 
 2010) has shown that the right advice early on can save, for example, £7 for 
 every £1 of legal aid spent on employment law; or £8 per £1 spent on legal 
 aid for welfare benefits. Up to two-thirds of the population are unaware of how 
 to get the legal services they need, and nearly 70% have no knowledge of 
 basic legal processes. Less than 50% of young people facing serious 
 problems, for example in housing and education, get the advice they need. 
 
8. Changes to Legal Aid mean some types of case no longer will be eligible for 
 public funds. This includes welfare benefits, employment, clinical negligence 
 and housing law, except in very limited circumstances. Since April 2013 
 nearly all family law advice has been removed from the legal aid scheme. This 
 means people can no longer get funding for divorce or child contact or 
 residence disputes. 
 
9. You have identified poverty as a significant issue for London and Londoners 
 and, in your Investing in Londoners programmes, have made it a priority to 
 fund the provision of money, debt and housing advice by accredited 
 organisations so that more people can access debt and legal services. 
 
10. In the last full financial year to 31st March 2013 LLST made grants totalling 
 £664,432 to 100+ different organisations, more than 90% of which were 
 based in Greater London. A key strand of its giving was under its “Keeping the 
 doors  open”  theme where an element of work or a whole agency was 
 threatened with closure. What was exceptional here, it states, was the number 
 of those organisations which funders and providers would recognise as 
 cornerstones of the sector and identify as innovative, well run and 
 collaborative. 
 
11. Applicant organisations must satisfy certain eligibility criteria which mirror 
 your own criteria for support. LLST will not fund non-charitable activity nor will 
 it support applications for general advice. In addition organisations must: 

Page 208



 

• Provide or facilitate the provision of free, specialist, legal advice 

• Provide advice to people or organisations who cannot afford to pay for 
it 

• Provide help to people who live in London or the Home Counties 
 
Centres of Excellence 
 

12. LLST has expert knowledge on the quality of community legal advice 
 agencies in London and on the sustainability of their services – knowledge 
 which a broader funder such as City Bridge Trust would struggle to attain and 
 maintain within its current resources. 
 
13. In making grants to organisations LLST scrutinises what type of support they 
 need (eg financial, advisory, or both) and devises a bespoke programme 
 accordingly. It may determine, for example, that an organisation needs some 
 guidance on reducing expenditure, or that two organisations could work 
 together more effectively or share office space.  
 
14. This level of analysis and bespoke support to the numbers of organisations 
 seen by LLST each year is beyond the day-to-day capacity of your officers. It 
 is extremely valuable, however, as it can ensure the survival and sustainability 
 of key services through very difficult circumstances. 
 
15. In 2013 LLST began to develop a strategy aimed at ensuring access to and 
 sustainability of, good quality advice. This strategy, which it now wishes to 
 implement in 2014 and beyond, will aim to channel the majority of its grants to 
 organisations which it will deem Centres of Excellence. In order to qualify as 
 a Centre of Excellence an organisation will be required to demonstrate two 
 central pillars: 
 

 a) Quality service provision of free legal advice and casework (including 
  representation) in areas of law from which legal aid was removed in 
  2013; and 
 b) Business efficiency. Ensuring money is being spent most effectively, 
  that all legal aid billing and other earned income is being maximised 
  (without compromising quality); that administration is efficient and  
  expenses are being kept as low as possible, with regular reviews to 
  ensure this. 
 
16. Community legal advice providers across London would be invited to apply to 
 become a Centre of Excellence. They will then need to undergo a fairly 
 stringent “MOT” undertaken by LLST and devised in partnership with 
 infrastructure organisations, funders and management consultants familiar 
 with this area of work and who have offered to help. 
 
17. LLST estimates that to turn an applicant organisation into a robust Centre of 
 Excellence with improved core strength and stability costs, on average, 
 £20,000 - £25,000. Some of this comprises the cost of providing bespoke 
 professional support needed and some is in the form of grant-aid to the 
 organisation to free up their capacity to fully engage in the process and/or 

Page 209



 offset staff temporarily being taken away from front-line duties. The 
 development process allows the organisation to plan and concentrate their 
 efforts on improving both their services and their financial security for the 
 future, which is often hindered greatly by the current cycle of constant 
 uncertainty and crisis management. This process would also provide an 
 excellent opportunity for sharing of best practice and for developing strategic 
 focus across the sector in London. 
 
 
Proposal 
 
18. LLST usually raises between £700,000 – £750,000 per year of which 
 c.£120,000 is needed for its own operational costs. Of the balance remaining 
 a proportion (typically in the region of £250,000) is pledged to particular 
 agencies by the donor and is, therefore, restricted and cannot be used for 
 other purposes. The remainder (typically £350,000 – £400,000) is then 
 available to be used for general grant-making, including the implementation of 
 the Centres of Excellence programme. 
 
19. LLST’s aim – and one which would be reflect the City Bridge Trust’s priorities 
 in reducing poverty amongst Londoners – would be to support access to a 
 Centre of Excellence for everyone in London, with the ultimate goal of every 
 borough eventually having its own. Capacity – financial and personnel – within 
 LLST  is extremely limited, however, and without further investment these 
 goals would take many years to achieve, and may be too late for many 
 organisations. Your funding, as proposed in 4.3 below, would enable LLST to 
 scale up this process significantly and provide essential support to 
 organisations in a sector which is currently experiencing unprecedented 
 demand amid reducing resources. 
 
20. It is proposed that you award a grant of £450,000 over three years (£150,000 
 per annum) to LLST towards its core salary costs to enable additional staff to 
 be recruited to free up existing personnel to develop Centres of Excellence 
 across Greater London and to financially assist those community advice 
 organisations in the capital to become Centres of Excellence. 
 
 
Financial Observations 
 
21. The audited accounts for the year ended 31st March 2013 show income of 
 £758,648 and expenditure of £807,619 resulting in a deficit of £48,971 (6.5%), 
 comprising a deficit of £106,849 on restricted funds and a surplus of £57,878 
 on unrestricted funds. 
 
22. The organisation’s reserves policy is to hold a minimum of 2 months’ worth of 
 operating costs in free reserves amounting to £18,000.  At 31st March 2013 
 free unrestricted reserves stood at £18,493. 
 
23. The forecast for the current to 31st March 2014 shows income of £770,000, all 
 of which has been confirmed. After expenditure of £717,400,  a surplus of 

Page 210



 £52,600 (6.8% of turnover) is predicted, comprising £47,800 on restricted 
 funds and £4,800 on unrestricted funds.  
 
24. The budget for 2014/15 anticipates income of £753,000, which the charity 
 hopes to secure after its annual Legal Walk event in May.  Expenditure 
 comprises £108,000 for operational costs, £224,000 on restricted activities 
 and the charity advises that the remainder will be made be available for grant-
 making, giving a break even position. 
 
Conclusion 
 
25. LLST is a specialist and unique supporter of voluntary, specialist, legal advice 
 services and is exceptional in its ability to harness the financial and 
 professional resources of the legal services industry to support hard-pressed 
 and financially vulnerable community legal services. It has expert knowledge 
 of the issues facing such services and of how they might be resolved. One 
 such measure - supporting organisations to become Centres of Excellence – 
 will help improve the range and the quality of free specialist advice for 
 London’s most needy individuals and communities. In order to meet its 
 ultimate goal of supporting 33 Centres in London, however, it will need to 
 augment its current resources. 
 
26. You have made funding for the provision of money, debt and housing advice 
 by accredited organisations a priority in your Investing in Londoners 
 programme, with the aim of reducing poverty. Your investment in the London 
 Legal Support Trust’s work will help strengthen and improve this sector and 
 help it better need the increasing needs of Londoners. A grant of £450,000 
 over three years (£150,000 pa) for LLST’s work to develop and support 
 Centres of Excellence in Greater London is recommended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: Ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 

 

 

13/03/2014 

Subject:  

Grant applications recommended for rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

Summary 

This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 4 grant 
applications that, for the reason(s) identified, are recommended for 
rejection. 

 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to reject the grant applications detailed in the 
accompanying schedule. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
1. There are a total of 4 applications recommended for rejection at this 

meeting. They are listed within categories in the accompanying 
schedule. In each case the “purpose” that is used to describe the 
application is that provided by the applicant organisation. All the 
recommendations are based on criteria set out in your Policy 
Guidance.  
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in the 
Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member wishes to 
query any of the recommendations, this can either be done at the 
meeting, in which case the decision may be deferred while full 
details are provided to the Member concerned, or by contacting the 
Trust office in advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 
provided prior to or at the meeting.  

 

 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 0207 332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 213



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



English for Speakers of Other Languages

12127
Shaarei Parnosoh
Toiva

We want to provide English literacy
training (ESOL equivalent)  from Entry 1
thorough to Level to Charedi men
whose first language is not English.

Of the £24,000 per annum requested less
than one quarter is needed for tutor costs with
the rest being for rent and other core
expenditure for an organisation where the
main focus of its work is outside your
priorities.

£72,121 CR
Hackney

Total English for Speakers of Other Languages (1 item) £72,121

Older Londoners

12105
Islington Somali
Community

Work with the most isolated older
Somali people in north London
providing an outreach service and links
to health, volunteering and support for
carers.

From the information provided this proposal is
insufficiently targeted at the priorities of your
Older Londoner's programme.

£95,250 CR
Islington

Total Older Londoners (1 item) £95,250

Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders

12117
Greenwich
Association of
Disabled People

To pilot a through the gate support
programme for disabled people leaving
Isis, Thamesmead or Belmarsh Prisons
to reduce risk of re-offending.

The applicant has not set out a convincing
case for funding. It has no track record in
working with ex-offenders and there is a lack
of evidence of local need and likely impact.

£124,408 JXM
Greenwich

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<+=$!"2.33"*4"4$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$>+*2$'"),.*,?$=)*4,2)1"
;@"$9+-A$:'+4("$;'0,-$9.33+--""$B$CD$E)'2@$FGCH

I033)'A$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$B$<*J",-+*($+*$=.*4.*"',

Total Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders (1 item) £124,408

P
age 215



Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector

12022
Voluntary Action
Harrow

We are seeking funding to deliver a
Best Practice Pilot Volunteer
Management Service in Harrow over 2
years.

Despite a follow-up request, the applicant has
been unable to provide the level of financial
information required to meet your
requirements.

£36,141 JXM
Harrow

Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector (1 item) £36,141

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$;.-)K,$>H$+-"3,? LDFMNOFG

P
age 216



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 13th March 2014 

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 
This Report draws your attention to those applications to the Working with 
Londoners programme which have been subsequently withdrawn by the 
applicant or lapsed due to additional information not forthcoming. 
 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 
Withdrawn Applications: 
 
Organisation      Purpose of Request 
  
Providence Row Charity “This project will improve the wellbeing of 150 

homeless and transient people each year, 
supporting them to a fulfilled life away from 
homelessness and crisis.” 
 
The organisation has been advised that this 
proposal is too similar to work funded by your 
previous grant - and is therefore ineligible - hence 
it has withdrawn this bid with a view to submitting 
a revised one in due course. 

  
 
Total Withdrawn Applications: 1 
Total Lapsed Applications: 0 
 
 
Recommendation 
That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
Contact: 
Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 
Tel:  020 7332 3186 
Date report written:  26/02/14 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 217



Page 218

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 13th March 2014 

 

Subject: 

Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated 

Authority 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to 6 expenditure items which, since 

your last meeting, have been approved under delegated authority. 
 

Three of these items are as grants (including one for Arts 
Apprentices). The three remaining are for the costs of Eco-audits. In 

these cases no monies are paid to recipient organisations, rather the 
funds approved are used by the Trust to commission and appoint 

qualified professionals to undertake individual audits for the named 

charities. 
 

The total amount of expenditure and number of items approved 

under delegated authority this financial year (inclusive of those 

below) are shown in Table 1. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 

Grants 
 
 

Organisation      Amount and Purpose of Grant 

  

Protege DNA Ltd £4,000 to match CEP funding towards the 

wage costs of 2 Apprentices for 1 year. The 

national minimum wage must be paid. 

 

 

Dagenham Bangladeshi 

Women & Children's 
Association 

£12,000 for two years (£5,000 in yr1 and 

£7,000 in yr2) towards the p/t salary 
(4h/w) of the Project Coordinator, the ESOL 

tutor and project running costs. 

 

 

Carers Support (Bexley) £11,500 for a third and final year towards 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 219



the salary of an advice worker 

(10hrs/week) and related costs for an 

advice and advocacy service for people with 

disabilities and their carers considering a 

more independent life through a personal 

budget. 

 

Eco-audits Approved 

 

  

Community Links Bromley 10 days (value £4,000) to undertake an 

eco-audit with Community Links Bromley 

and within Community House. 

 

London Voluntary Service 

Council 

Provision of one additional day to complete 

the review process and to prepare the final 

report. 

 

Voluntary Action Islington Provision of one additional day for the 

delivery of an information workshop from 

VCS front line workers, with a focus on 

helping vulnerable clients reduce their day 
to day living costs and their carbon 

footprint. 
  

Table 1 

Summary of delegated authority spend for the year to date 

 

Applications at 

Committee 

Delegated authority 

< £5k including 

eco-audits 
  

Delegated authority 

< £25k 

  

  £ Number £ Number 

April 2013 10,125  5 97,700  5 

May 2013 0  0 30,060  2 

June 2013 0  0 47,500  3 

July 2013 10,580  3 15,000  1 

September 2013 1,152  1 125,295  6 

October 3/13 0  0 19,995  1 

October 30/13 5,000  1 48,760  2 

November 2013 0 0 44,500 2 

January 2014 10,126 3 42,400 3 

February 2014 1,500 1 0 0 

March 2014 8,750 4 23,500 2 

Total for year to date 47,233 18  494,710  27 

 

 

 

Page 220



Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3186 

Date report written:  28/02/14 

Page 221



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 13th March 2014 

 

Subject: 

Reports on Monitoring Visits 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 
You receive two sample monitoring visit reports at each of your meetings. 
These are in addition to the two substantial monitoring reports you receive 
annually. One of these, a report reflecting on issues arising from the 
monitoring and evaluation of grants was presented to your February 2013 
meeting whilst a statistical monitoring report looking at trends in your grant-
making was presented to your November 2013 meeting. 
 
Reports to this Committee are from visits to Action for Stammering Children 
and Thames21. 
 
You support Action for Stammering Children under your Positive Transitions 
to Independent Living programme, funding therapy support services. 
Thames21, which you support under your London’s Environment 
programme, has used your grant to lead a programme mobilising volunteers 
to clean London’s waterways. Alderman Alison Gowman and Mr Seaton 
took part in the visit to Thames21 whilst Mrs Littlechild participated in the 
visit to Action for Stammering Children. 
 

Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 
 

 
 
 
 
Contact: 
Tim Wilson 
Tel:  020 7332 3716 
Email:  tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
Date report written:  28/02/2014 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 223



Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Action for Stammering 

Children 

Grant ref: 

10856 (CR) 

Programme area: 

Positive Transitions to 

Independent Living\b)  

Young disabled people in 

transition into adulthood 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

17/11/2011: £90,000 over three years (3 x £30,000) towards the costs of providing 

specialist consultation to young Londoners.  

Visiting Grants Officer: 

Ciaran Rafferty, accompanied by Mrs 

Littlechild 

Date of meeting: 

23rd January 2014 

Met with: 

Patrick Tonks (Chief Exec) and Elaine Kelman (Clinical Manager) 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 

Action for Stammering Children (ASC) is a charity which supports expert therapy to 

transform the lives of children and young people who stammer. The organisation is 

often referred to, incorrectly, as the Michael Palin Centre, which is located in Islington 
and has developed a world-wide reputation for its work in this field. ASC, in fact, was 

founded in 1989 and is the charity behind the Michael Palin Centre (founded in 1993) 
and the more recently established Stammering Support Centre in Leeds. Although 

these two centres employ many therapists the charity itself (ASC) is exceptionally 

lean – with a f/t Chief Executive and one p/t Administrator. 

 

2. The project funded: 

Prior to delivering the therapies to children and young people the organisation aims to 

provide a programme of consultation and assessment of/for both the child and their 
parents/family. This is essential to ensuring that the therapy itself is correctly tailored 

to individual needs and circumstances. Each one of these pre-therapy programmes 
costs, on average, £836 per child so the £30,000 annual grant covers in the region of 

37 such consultations per year. The grant commenced in December 2011. 
 

3. Work delivered to date: 

Stammering is not something that can be fixed permanently but it can be managed. It 

can be triggered by an event or other factors (e.g. the change from primary to 

secondary school) so the key is to address the relevant factors in order to alleviate 

the chance of it happening and/or the ability of the child to manage it so that it 

doesn’t get in the way of their development and health. The earlier a child can be 

helped the greater the chance that the problems will not become entrenched. Because 

the cause and resolution of stammering is so personal it follows that the more 

bespoke the therapy, the more successful it is likely to be. Pre-therapy assessment, 

funded by the Trust, allows for two therapists to provide, on average, 2 hours of work 

with the child and their families. (The NHS will fund only up to ½ hour of this end of 

the treatment hence the need for independent funding.) In the first two years of the 

grant (from Dec 2011 – Nov 2013) Trust funding provided for approximately 70 pre-

therapy consultations. 
 
 Page 225



4. Difference made: 

The pre-therapy consultations clearly have a direct effect on the quality and impact of 

the therapeutic treatment of the child but they also have a significant impact on the 

child’s family as they are included in the process to a greater or lesser extent. Their 

inclusion helps them better understand the specific issues that may be affecting the 

child’s speech – and thereby help to alleviate some possible factors and/or making the 

treatment become more focused and more likely to succeed. Seeing a child fail to 

manage their stammer and all the consequent implications (e.g. becoming more 

withdrawn, being bullied, etc.) can be heart-breaking for a parent and the fact of 

involving them in the early stages of diagnosis and treatment is essential to their 

wellbeing as well. It is not unusual, for example, for a parent to have had stammer 

themselves and if they have “grown out of it” as can happen then they feel that their 

child will be okay and will, too, grow out of it. The consultations with the therapists 

are essential to ensuring that, in these instances, the child continues to get the 

treatment s/he needs. 
 

In monitoring information provided by the organisation, over 80% of parents 

attending the consultation believe that it has helped them better understand their 

child’s needs and that it has provided a positive way forward for them and their child. 

A similar percentage of the therapists said that the consultations helped them better 
understand the child’s difficulties and were better able to devise a more suitable 

programme of treatment. 
 

5. Grants Administration:  

The grant has been administered and monitored effectively and with no compliance 

issues arising at any time. The organisation has been happy with their dealings with 
the Trust. 
 
 

6. Concluding comments: 

Stammering affects many children, with 6 males affected for every one female. By 

way of introduction to this meeting the organisation played a short but powerful video 
of some young children telling of the various difficulties arising from their stammering. 

The impact is different from person to person and so it stands to reason that 
treatment should follow suit. The Trust’s support of pre-therapy consultation makes 

the eventual treatment more effective and more sustainable. It also has a distinct 

benefit to the parents/carers and siblings – making them more aware of the triggers 

and of the methods of managing the condition and ensuring that the young person 

has an effective support system based on what is right for them. Sadly, there are far 

too few services such as those provided by ASC – making what they do even more 

valuable. This is a well-run, experienced, efficient and effective organisation at the 

leading edge of work in this field. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 226



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Thames21 Ltd 

Grant ref: 

10517 (CR) 

Programme area: 

London's Environment\b)  

Biodiversity 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

28/04/2011: £150,000 over three years (£43,000; £50,000; £57,000) for the salary 

of a Project Officer and the related costs of a scheme developing and supporting local 

volunteering to improve the Thames and London's waterways.  

Visiting Grants Officer: 

Ciaran Rafferty – accompanied by 

Alderman Gowman and Ian Seaton 

Date of meeting: 

6th January 2014 

Met with: Debbie Leach (CEO); Julia Makin (Project Officer until Jan 2014); Chris 

Coode (Senior Programmes Manager); Andrew Lobel (Project Officer from Jan 2014) 

 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 

Thames21 is the charitable company set up to conserve London’s rivers and canals 

and to improve the public’s knowledge and appreciation of the heritage, ecology and 

amenity they provide. The current charitable company was formed in 2004 though the 
organisation operated before this as a distinct project of the larger, national, charity 

ENCAMS. The organisation’s turnover in the past few years has been in the region of 
£1.5m. Its approach is to encourage, train and support local people as volunteers to 

look after the waterways of London so that the activity becomes more sustainable and 

less reliant on paid staff to do this work. 

 

2. The project funded: 

The current grant (which commenced in September 2011) is for a Project Officer to 

develop and support local volunteering to improve the Thames and its waterways. The 
aim is to develop a range of skills within volunteers themselves (either individually or 

in groups) so that they can successfully deliver a clean-up project. The project/grant 
commenced in September 2011. 
 

3. Work delivered to date: 

The ethos underpinning this project is the recognition that Thames21 – or any single 

organisation for that matter – would not, alone, be able to conserve and keep clean 

London’s waterways. Although the organisation is very effective at mobilising teams of 
volunteers across London, this process still requires daily, staffed, management and 

support. A more effective and sustainable approach is to train and empower 

volunteers themselves to organise and manage such activities – hence this project 

which aims to have more groups operating independently and with confidence. 
 

People are often put off from taking action due to a lack of experience and confidence 

about working around water, particularly with regards to health and safety. The 

training programme – delivered to high, assessed, standards - responds directly to 

this need. Thames21 has an Investing in Quality licence, enabling trainees to gain a 

formal certificate (then badge). The basic course is called “Leading a Waterway Clean-

up” an comprises two day-long sessions, after which people can take extra modules 

in, for example, water-quality testing, or reed-bed restoration. After the two-day basic 

course trainees can then sign up to be part of the organisation’s Event Support Team 

to gain more experience further develop their skills-base. 
Page 227



4. Difference made: 

So far, half of London’s boroughs have been represented, with a correlation between 

people taking part and Thames21 having an existing or prior presence in their area. In 

the period Sept 2012 – Sept 2013 (year 2 of the grant) there were 212 people 

registered; 42 training sessions delivered (106 people attended one day; 73 attended 

both days). 18 trained groups are now operating independently and there were 57 

events delivered by trained individuals or groups. 28 new recruits went on to join the 

Event Support Team. Groups vary in their composition and include individuals; 

“Friends of..”; partnerships; university students; corporate teams. 
 

Thames21 is able to report that, on the whole, groups and events enjoy very positive 

relationships with land-owners, local authorities, etc. – relationships which need to be 

good in order to facilitate access to the water, for example, or for the removal of 

rubbish. The tidal Thames is less littered now than previously though there has been 

an increase in particular types of rubbish (e.g. plastic bottles) and often in hotspots 

(reflective of the particular currents and tides). 
 

A consequence of the mobilisation of volunteers is that groups often will be 
established to tackle a particular issue (e.g. to clean up a waterway – “litter gets 

people angry!” in the words of the officer) but, after the project is completed, 
continue to meet, perhaps for social activities or to take on a new challenge. In this 

respect the project has been effective in general community development, helping 

reduce isolation for some people and increasing their networks and circle of friends. 
 

A future development of the scheme (albeit requiring other resources) would be to 

offer individual groups access to storage and/or small equipment hire; as well as 

access to transport (small vans etc). There would also be some benefit in groups 

having access to small grants (£500/£1,000) to support their activities. 
 

Other outcomes include an increase in biodiversity monitoring; greater knowledge of 
waterways amongst the public; and development of the Thames River Watch project. 
 

5. Grants Administration:  

Payments, paperwork, reporting etc. has all been fine and to time on both sides. It 

was suggested that the CBT funding/logo could be more prominently displayed on the 
organisation’s website. The original postholder Julia (for whom payslips were seen) 

was due to move from this post into another one within the organisation although her 

replacement (Andrew) was present at this meeting, this being his first day in the job. 

The organisations stated that it felt the Trust was easy to deal with and welcomed the 

good and constructive relationship established over several years. It also felt that the 
Trust has played a significant role in the development of Thames21 over the years, 

whilst this particular project had increased its standing as an environmental charity 

and increased its partnerships with Londoners and local agencies. 
 

6. Concluding comments: 

Thames21 is the only agency which works for and across the Thames and London’s 

waterways. It is held in high regard by other, key, agencies (including local 

authorities, corporates, government departments) and by the public who cherish and 

enjoy London’s rich tapestry of rivers and canals. It consistently delivers effective and 

relevant projects – of which this is one – and is good at learning from its work and 

applying such learning to maintain its effectiveness. 
 

 
Page 228



Agenda Item 12

Page 229

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Items
	5 Progress Report and Events
	Appx A to CGO Prog Rep
	Appx 1 to Appx A CGO Prog Rep
	Appx 2 to Appx A CGO Prog Rep
	Appx 3 to Appx A CGO Prog Rep
	Events Table

	6 Grant Applications Statistical Report
	7 Grants and Strategic Initiatives Recommendations and Assessments
	Grant Summary - Annex order IiL

	7a Wandsworth Community Empowerment Network - Recommended Grant £109,120
	7b Community Development Finance Association (CDFA) - Recommended Grant £133,400
	7c Council of Somali Organisations (CSO) - Recommended Grant £100,000
	7d Epping Forest Charitable Trust - Recommended Grant £388,000
	7e SHARE Community - Recommended Grant £130,000
	7f Bede House Association - Recommended Grant £88,000
	7g Bexley Citizens Advice Bureaux - Recommended Grant £101,440
	7h Centre For Armenian Information & Advice - Recommended Grant £90,000
	7i Zacchaeus 2000 Trust - Recommended Grant £149,850
	7j Changing Paths Charitable Trust Limited - Recommended Grant £50,000
	7k Research on Access to the Arts for People with Learning Disabilities - Recommended Grant £40,000
	7l City Philanthropy - Recommended Grant £222,000
	7m London Youth Inclusion Project - Recommended Grant £216,000
	7n Media Trust, London 360 - Recommended Grant £240,000
	7o New Economics Foundation (nef) - Recommended Grant £30,000
	7p London Legal Support Trust - Recommended Grant £450,000
	8a Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Reject - WWL

	8b Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	8c Grants Approved under Delegated Authority
	8d Reports on Monitoring Visits
	Monitoring visit report Action for Stammering Children
	Monitoring visit report Thames 21

	12 Non-Public Minutes

